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Spotlight on Share Performance

Share capital on December 31

2006 2005 2004 2004 2003 2002
comparable® reported
Number of shares as per articles of incorporation
Bearer shares  (par value CHF 50) - - - - - 376000
Registered shares (par value CHF 10) - - - - - 729300
Registered shares (par value CHF 0.01) 25052870 25052870 25052870%| 250528704 260930007 -
Conditional capital - - - - - -
Authorized capital - - - - - -
Number of shares entitled to dividend on December 31
Bearer shares - - - - - 376000
Registered shares - - - - - 729300
Registered shares 22718364 23810571 24255600 124255600 26093000 -
Treasury shares 2334506 1242299 797270 | 797270 - -
Information per share:?
Dividend proposal per share in CHF 7.657 6.50) 4.00 4.00 8.00 7607
Equity per share in CHFY 4815 44.64 36.48 4.7 56.57 50.58
Cash flow per share in CHF? 15.67 9.85 9.87 10.77 15.77 8.87
Earnings per share in CHF
basic* - - - 1.33 410 617
diluted” - - - 1.33 410 617
Earnings per share in CHF
from continued activities
basic* 12.99 1.21 6.96 - - -
diluted” 12.65 1.21 6.96 - - -
Earnings per share in CHF
from discontinued activities
basic* - 0.03 0.37 - - -
diluted* - 0.03 0.37 - - -
Stock prices in CHF'?
High 147.00 116.90 99.21 107.25 108.00 130.00
Low 117.00 93.43 90.19 97.50 90.00 97.60
At 31.12. 146.60 116.50 94.36 102.00 97.00 101.60
Market capitalization on December 31 (CHF millions) 36728 29187 23640 | 25554 25310 26510

Registered shares are listed on the SWX Swiss Exchange and are traded on virt-x, an electronic trading system in London.

Security number ISIN

EMS-CHEMIE 1.644.035 (H0016440353

*

calculated according to IAS 33

Investdata/Reuters identification

EMSN

U Dividend payment (KCHF 198307) and reduction of par value of CHF 49.50 per existing bearer share and CHF 9.90 per existing registered share

R B

(nominal KCHF 25832).

On November 3, 2003 the existing bearer shares were split at a ratio of 1:50 and the existing registered shares at a ratio of 1:10.
All figures per share have been restated for the share split which took place on November 3, 2003.

1040130 registered shares were canceled as part of a share buyback on November 9, 2004.

The comparable figures for 2004 consist of continued activities.

CHF 5.00 ordinary dividend per share, CHF 1.50 special dividend per share.

CHF 5.50 ordinary dividend per share, CHF 2.15 special dividend per share.

Inclusive minority interests.

Cash flow = net income plus write-downs on intangible assets, property, plant and equipment plus value adjustments to securities and financial investments.

Source: Bloomberg.
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Chairman’s Letter

oy lonchodfon,

This year | am delighted to be able to present you
with the best set of financial results in the history of
the EMS Group.

The consistent focus on Performance Polymers over
the last three years has resulted in a substantial in-
crease in net sales, net operating income and profit
with above-average margins, even on a secfor com-
parison. This confirms that we are right in our strategy
of concentration on high-quality and high-margin
speciality products in the Performance Polymers field,
and that our internal restructuring policy is correct.

Over the past financial year, measures and projects
initiated with a view to achieving growth and
income targets, and to strengthen the competitive
position of EMS, were implemented by Senior
Management in a consistent and future-oriented
way. This applies to product and application
development as well as to sales and marketing,
production and services.

Centre of focus of our thoughts and actions are and
remain our customers, who we will continue to support
with unique solutions, helping them to achieve success.
Our customers trust the quality of our products and the
reliability of our future-oriented innovation and im-
provement of speciality products and processes, as
basis for our company’s confinued development.

| am therefore confident that EMS will continue to
play a part in the medium-term business plans of its
customers.

Pursuit of our clear-cut business strategy — consistent
concentration on generating operative growth with

speciality products, above all in the Performance
Polymers business area — will continue to form the basis
for future-oriented development of the company.

This objective will be strengthened and supported
by substantial investments in production

and infrastructure, and by expanding our global
customer-oriented market presence.

Assuming appropriately positive market develop-
ments, the internal prerequisites for continuing
growth are in place. With entrepreneurial attitudes
on the part of everybody involved, we intend to
increase profit and company value, supported by a
financial strategy that enables us to allocate finan-
cial resources with first priority to the development
of our core activities. Additionally available funds
will be returned to shareholders in an appropriate
manner. The earlier announced further reduction in
transactions involving volatile financial securities
with a view to minimising entrepreneurial risk, is part
of our financial strategy and was implemented with
great success during the financial year.

Clear success factors which remain unchanged are our
high innovative capacity, focus on customers and top
operational performance, combined with the know-
how, integrity and determination of all our employees,
Senior Management and the Board of Directors.

On behalf of the Board of Directors | thank all our
business partners, customers and development part-
ners for their confidence and trust in EMS and for
their loyalty to our company.

Moreover, | would like to express my great appreci-
ation for our employees throughout the world, for
their contribution to the advancement of EMS to the
benefit of customers, shareholders and the employ-
ees themselves.

Our operating and strategic success has signifi-
cantly increased both the company value of EMS
and dividends paid. We are delighted that our
shareholders will continue in future to see us as an
aftractive and reliable company. Thank you for your
financial commitment, and for your continuing confi-
dence in our mutual future. Your high expectations
will continue to be an incentive for us.

»] i

Dieter Klug
Chairman of the Board of Directors



CEO's Statement

Dear Shareholders,

As expected, 2006 was characterised by an upturn
in global economic activity. The typical features of
an economic boom were observed: Every news item
was interpreted positively, good corporate profits
boosted expectations of future results, stock markets
all over the world set new records, take-overs were
frequent, and investment was universal. Even
political uncertainty did nothing to undermine the
generally positive mood.

EMS achieved very satisfactory volume increases in
2006 with speciality products in Performance
Polymers, our main business area. The result even
exceeded our own expectations. Positive economic
development throughout the world, and particularly
strong demand in our main markets, Asia and
Europe, made 2006 an extraordinarily good year
for EMS. Net sales and net operating income were
significantly above previous year's figures, and the
EBIT margin — already very high in relation to
competitors — was further increased despite higher
raw-material prices.

EMS focuses clearly on operating business with
Performance Polymers. Financial resources that are
surplus to operating requirements will be returned to
shareholders. Net financial income will conse-
quently be less important in future. The existing
shareholding in Lonza was declared to be a
financial investment and reduced to less than 5% at
the end of 2006. This constituted an important mile-
stone in the implementation of the financial strategy.
Successful sales of Lonza shares conducted in 2006
generated extraordinarily high net financial

income and a high net profit.

EMS continues to strive for profitable growth with
speciality products. The comprehensive programme
to promote speciality products was therefore
continued consistently. New speciality businesses
established in previous years took effect, requiring
increased production capacity. Several major invest-
ments were carried out successfully in 2006, and
production capacity was significantly increased.

As the EMS Group’s largest production site,
Domat/Ems (CH) played a key role in the expansion
of production capacity. Various measures were
taken to increase efficiency, some of which broke
new ground. Flexible annual working hours, with a
normal 43-hour working week, were successfully

introduced. With the start of operations of the major
industrial-scale biomass power station, wood is
being efficiently exploited as an alternative energy
source, replacing a substantial proportion of the
fossil energy previously used. By 2009 EMS will
have cut its CO, emissions by 80%.

The global economic environment is likely to be
uneven in 2007. EMS will continue to monitor eco-
nomic development, ensuring that it can respond
rapidly and flexibly to events as they occur.

The strategy of systematically promoting speciality
products will continue regardless of economic
developments. EMS expects to be in a position to
continue to generate positive business results in

2007,

| {\”aﬁfbﬂo

Magdalena Martullo-Blocher
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors
and CEO
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Calendar years, CHF millions

2006 2005 2004 2004 2003 2002
comparable” reported
Net sales revenue 13959 12533 11490 | 12670 12207 12209
Change in % against previous year +11.4% +91% +3.8% -0.0% -2.5%
Change in local currencies +103%  +8.4% +43%  +17%  +28%
Change with identical scope of consolidation +114%  +91% +67%  +15% -2.5%
Change in local currencies and
with identical scope of consolidation +103%  +8.4% +73%  +32%  +03%
of which in Switzerland 4.8% 4.4% 4.5% 6.1% 5.5% 8.0%
Operating income 1450.] 12783 12356 | 1357.7 13231 13375
Change in % against previous year +13.4% +3.5% +2.6% -1.1% +57%
Net operating income (EBIT) 246.8 2164 2034 2178 197.3 194.9
Change in % against previous year +14.1% +6.4% +104%  +13% +19.3%
in % of net sales revenue 17.7% 17.3% 17.7% 17.2% 16.2% 16.0%
Net financial income 118.3 10.9 18.3 15.9 -58.2 19.0
Change in % against previous year +981.2%  -40.2% +127.3% -406.0%  -71.0%
Net income before taxes 365.1 2273 .7 2337 139.] 2139
Change in % against previous year +60.6% +2.6% +68.0%  -35.0% -6.6%
Income taxes 574 455 413 439 25.7 49.0
Change in % against previous year +263%  +101% +70.6%  -47.5% -4.4%
Net income (inclusive minority inferests) 307.7 181.9 180.4 189.8 113.4 164.9
Change in % against previous year +69.2% +0.8% +675%  -31.3% -1.3%
in % of net sales revenue 22.0% 14.5% 15.7% 15.0% 9.3% 13.5%
Depreciation and amortization of intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment 5111 53.9 56.9 69.8 68.4 66.5
Cash flow? 358.8 239.0 246.9 269.2 4114 2314
Change in % against previous year +50.1% -3.2% -346%  +778%  -161%
in % of net sales revenue 25.7% 19.1% 21.5% 21.2% 33.7% 19.0%
Investments 64.3 48.8 455 529 70.6 715
in % of cash flow 17.9% 20.4% 18.4% 19.6% 17.2% 30.9%

1 The comparable figures for 2004 consist of continued activities.

2 Cash flow = net income plus write-downs on intangible assets, property, plant and equipment plus value adjustments to securities and financial investments.

o
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Calendar years, CHF millions

2006 2005 2004 2004 2003 2002
comparable” reported
Balance sheet total 23286 23504 23226 | 25925  3N76 31669
Assets
Current assets 17330 18169 17245 | 18193 22974 18355
Non-current assets 595.6 5335 598.1 173.2 820.2 13314
Equity and liabilities
Current liabilities 339.0 315.0 293.7 313.0 360.8 440.0
Non-current liabilities 886.8 9526 11165 | 11612 1280.7 14071
Equity? 11027 10829 9123 | 11182 14761 1319.9
Balance sheet equity ratio 47 4% 46.1% 39.3% 431% 47.3% 41.7%
Refurn on equity 21.9% 16.8% 19.8% 17.0% 7.7% 12.5%
Number of employees on December 31* 2061 2055 2078 2459 2637 2702
Fire insurance value of property, plant and equipment 1382.7 1429.0 1362.7 1808.5 18555 1933.9

* Excluding apprentices (2006: 112; 2005: 119; 2004 comparable: 124; 2004 reported: 158; 2003: 154; 2002: 153)

1" The comparable figures for 2004 consist of continued activities.
2 Inclusive minority interests.
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General Information on the Financial Year 2006 at the EMS Group

Business performance

In the 2006 financial year the EMS Group
significantly increased net sales revenue and net
operating income (EBIT), actually exceeding its own
expectations. The consistent focus on speciality
products in the Performance Polymers business area
once more generated very satisfactory development
of business and sales volumes.

Net sales revenue rose by 11.4% over the previous
year to CHF 1396 million (1253). The gain in local
currencies amounted to 10.3%.

Net operating income (EBIT) was boosted by 14.1%
over the previous year to CHF 247 million (216) and
EBITDA by 10.2% to CHF 298 million (270). The EBIT
margin was 17.7% (17.3%].

Net financial income amounted to an extraordinar-
ily high CHF 118 million (11), primarily as a result

of the successful sales of shares from the Lonza
investment.

Net income after taxes increased to CHF 308
million (182).

EMS continues to pursue its strategy of consistent
focus on operative growth with speciality products
in the Performance Polymers business area in
particular.

The global economic environment is likely to be
uneven in 2007. While Europe and Asia continue to
post a very positive economic performance, there
are indications of a possible slow-down in North
America. EMS continuously monitors economic de-
velopment, ensuring that it can respond rapidly and
flexibly to events as they occur. No further extraordi-
nary financial income is expected in 2007. As a
result, net financial income will be substantially
lower than in 2006. Net sales revenue and net
operating income (EBIT), however, are expected to
be slightly above the previous year's figures.

Investment

Investment amounted to CHF 64 million (49). Due to
the high operational cash flow level of CHF 298 mil-
lion [270), investment was once again funded from
internal resources. The fact that a high free cash
flow is always generated, in good as well as in criti-
cal years, is a characteristic of the EMS Group.

Investment by application

Capacity

expansion

621%

Quality /technical
improvements,
environment/

safety

Renewal /
rationalisation

Investment by country and region

Switzerland

EU

USA

Asia

Management structure

At the 2006 General Meeting Dieter Klug,
Magdalena Martullo, Egbert Appel, Dr. Hansjérg
Frei and Albert Reich were elected to the Board of
Directors for a further one-year term of office.

Dr. Werner Prétorius was also elected as a new
member of the Board of Directors for a one-year
term.

Personnel

At the end of the financial year, the two business
areas forming the EMS Group employed a total of
2061 (2055) people lexcluding apprentices), of
which 1220 (1229) work in Switzerland, 466 (476)
elsewhere in Europe, 269 (241) in Asia and 106
(109) in the USA. At the end of the year the EMS
Group employed 112 (119) apprentices in
Switzerland in 12 (12) vocational fields. A total of
34 (35) apprentices successfully completed their
apprenticeship during the financial year.



Research and development

Expenditure on research and development in

the financial year was 3.6% (3.7%) of net sales
revenue (see note 5 in the financial statement).
Development activities focused primarily on the
programme initiated in 2004 to promote speciality

products.

Breakdown of EMS Group net sales revenue

by country/region

Germany 27.6%
Japan 9.6%
USA 8.8%
France 8.0%
China 6.3%
ltaly 6.2%
Switzerland 4.8%
Great Britain 4.8%
Spain 3.9%
Austria 2.2%
Taiwan 1.7%
Sweden 1.6%
Belgium 1.4%
South Korea 1.3%
Netherlands 1.1%
Finland 1.1%
Rest of Europe 4.9%
Others 4.7%

Breakdown of EMS Group production
by country/region

Switzerland 59.6%
Germany 12.1%
Japan 6.7%
Belgium 5.9%
USA 4.7%
Great Britain 3.6%
Taiwan 3.0%
China 1.9%
Spain 1.9%
Others 0.6%

EMS Group
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Business areas

The EMS Group operates globally in the business
areas of Performance Polymers and Fine Chemicals/
Engineering. These business areas are further
broken down into Business Units.

Performance Polymers

EMS-GRIVORY comprises four independent Business
Units holding profit responsibility. It produces
top-quality, custom-made performance polymers
(granulates). Thanks to their high performance and
cost-cutting processing qualities, these materials are
used in a variety of applications, mainly in the auto-
motive and electronics industries. EMS-GRIVORY
Performance Polymers specialises in innovative solu-
tions for injection moulding customers in Europe.
EMS-GRIVORY Extrusion Polymers focuses on
exfrusion, extrusion blow moulding and packaging
applications in Europe. EMS-GRIVORY Asia
operates in the growth market Asia. EMS-GRIVORY
America is responsible for the business in North
America.

Business Unit EMS-GRILTECH specialises in hot melt
adhesives for technical and textile applications and
in special fibres for paper machines.

Business Unit EMS-TOGO as a specialist for
bonding, sealing and coating, serves the global
automotive industry.

In 2006 the business area Performance Polymers
generated net sales revenue of CHF 1266 million
(1118) and net operating income (EBIT) of CHF 214
million (179). The business area actually exceeded
its planned growth, primarily increasing sales

volume with speciality products. The development of
the European and Asian markets as well as applica-
tions for high-temperature polymers was particularly
satisfactory.

Fine Chemicals/ Engineering

Business Unit EMS-PRIMID specialises in crosslinkers
for environmentally compatible powder coatings,
bonding agents for the tyre industry, and epoxy
compounds used in the manufacture of civil-
engineering products.

Business Unit EMS-PATVAG produces ignitors for

airbag gas generators.

Business area Fine Chemicals/Engineering gener-
ated net sales revenue of CHF 130 million (136) and
net operating income (EBIT) of CHF 33 million (37).
The decline in net sales revenue and net operating
income compared to the previous year can be at-
tributed primarily to EMS-PATVAG, where increasing
price pressure due to weaker market growth

had the expected negative effect. EMS-PRIMID
developed according to plan.



Corporate Governance in the EMS Group

EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG is committed to
responsible corporate governance and monitoring.
The order of the following chapters conforms to that
of the SWX Swiss Exchange Directive on Information
Relating to Corporate Governance (DCG) which
entered into force on July 1, 2002. Detailed princi-
ples and rules are also laid down in the company’s
Articles of Association at www.ems-group.com/ar/
articlesofassociation and in the Organizational
Rules of the EMS Group at www.ems-group.com/
ar/organizationalrules.

1. Group structure and shareholders

1.1 Group structure

The EMS Group is active worldwide in the two
business areas Performance Polymers and Fine
Chemicals/Engineering. The organizational break-
down is based on product types. The Group
operating structure is as follows:

EMS Group
Corporate Governance
Annual Report 200672007

The companies of the EMS Group are grouped to-
gether in the EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG, with its
registered office in Domat/Ems, Switzerland. EMS-
CHEMIE HOLDING AG is the only listed company
within the consolidated group of companies.

EMS registered shares [EMSN, security number
1.644.035) are listed on the SWX Swiss Exchange
and traded on virt-x, an electronic trading system
based in London. As of December 31, 2006, the
market capitalization of EMS amounted to

CHF 3672.8 million. None of the subsidiaries hold
any EMS registered shares.

An overview of the unlisted subsidiaries of the EMS
Group can be found in note 32 in the Financial
Section.

Segment reporting by business area and geograph-
ical region can be found on page 34.

Board of Directors

CEO

Finance/

Group Secretariat

Accounting

PERFORMANCE
POLYMERS

FINE CHEMICALS/
ENGINEERING
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1.2 Significant shareholders

As of December 31, 2006, two shareholders each
held more than 5% of the equity of EMS-CHEMIE
HOLDING AG: Emesta Holding AG, Zug (53.47 %]
and the company itself, EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING
AG l(treasury shares, 9.32%).

As of February 19, 2007, three shareholders each
held more than 5% of the equity of EMS-CHEMIE
HOLDING AG: Emesta Holding AG, Zug (47.48%),
Miriam Blocher (7.86%) and the company itself,
EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG ltreasury shares,
9.32%).

1.3 Cross-shareholdings

There are no cross-shareholdings with other
companies.

2. Capital structure

2.1 Capital/ 2.2 Authorized and conditional capital
in particular

The ordinary share capital of EMS-CHEMIE
HOLDING AG amounts to CHF 250 528.70.

No authorized or conditional capital exists.

2.3 Changes in capital

Information on capital changes can be found on
page 3 (Spotlight on Share Performance) and in the
financial section on page 24 (Consolidated
Changes in Equity of the EMS Group).

2.4 Shares and participation certificates /
2.5 Profit sharing certificates

The fully paid share capital is divided into

25052 870 registered shares with a par value of
CHF 0.01 each. All registered shares are entitled to
dividends. Each registered share entitles the holder
to one vote at the General Meeting. No participa-
tion certificates or profit sharing certificates exist.

2.6 Limitations on transferability and
nominee registrations

On request, purchasers of the shares of EMS-
CHEMIE HOLDING AG are entered in the share
register as voting shareholders without restrictions,
provided they expressly declare that the registered
shares were acquired in their own name and on
their own account.

The Board of Directors may enter people whose
request for registration does not include an express
declaration that they hold the shares on their own
account (“Nominees”), and with whom the company
has entered info an agreement to this effect, in the
register of shareholders with voting rights up to a
maximum of 2% of the share capital entered in the
commercial register.

The Articles of Association do not provide for any
privileges or restrictions on transferability.

2.7 Convertible bonds and warrants/options

Details of the two outstanding convertible bonds
are set out in note 18 in the Financial Section.
No warrants /options have been issued.



3. Board of Directors

3.1 Members of the Board of Directors/
3.2 Activities and vested interests

Board of Directors

EMS Group
Corporate Governance
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Name Nationality Status Year of First elected Term of office
birth in expires
Dieter Klug German Non-executive 1937 January 2004 2007
Magdalena Martullo Swiss Executive 1969 August 2002 2007
Egbert Appel German Non-executive 1949 January 2005 2007
Dr Hansjorg Frei Swiss Non-executive 1941 January 2003 2007
Dr Werner Pratorius German Non-executive 1946 September 2006 2007
Albert Reich Swiss Executive 1943 January 2004 2007

On December 31, 2006, the Board of Directors of
EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG consisted of the

following six members:

Dieter Klug (born in 1937, German citizen, Graduate
Engineer] has been the non-executive Chairman of
the Board of Directors since January 2004. From
1992 to 2002 he was President and CEO of
Netstal-Maschinen AG, Néfels. Dieter Klug has 30
years' management experience in the capital-goods
industry, in particular the plastics engineering and
plastics processing industry, where he gained
widely-diversified strategic and operational experi-
ence as CEO of various large and medium-sized
international companies. In addition, Dieter Klug
was a member of the Board of Directors of Netstal-
Maschinen AG, Naéfels, until September 2006.

Magdalena Martullo-Blocher (born in 1969, Swiss
citizen, Masters Degree in Economics) has been
executive Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors
since August 2002 and CEO since January 2004.
She joined the EMS Group in January 2001 and be-
came a member of the Board of Directors in August
2001. From 1996 until 2000 Magdalena Martullo
was with Rivella AG, where her last position was
Head of Marketing for Switzerland and member of
the company's extended Senior Management. From
1994 to 1996 she was Product Manager with John-
son & Johnson AG, prior to which she worked in
various positions, both in Switzerland and abroad.
As CEO, Magdalena Martullo bears overall operat-

ing responsibility for the EMS Group. She has been
a member of the Executive Board of SGCI Chemie
Pharma Schweiz since June 2004.

Egbert Appel (born in 1949, German citizen, lawyer!
has been a non-executive member of the Board of
Directors since January 2005. He has worked for
Hilti AG in Schaan, Liechtenstein, for 24 years and
was appointed to Senior Management in 1994,
where he headed Human Resources, Financing and
Information Technology until the end of 2006. Before
joining Senior Management he worked as General
Manager in Japan and Germany, as well as Branch
Manager and Head of Human Resources of Hilti
Deutschland. Prior to this, he was Head of Human
Resources and secretary to the Board of Directors of
an industrial group. Since January 2007 Egbert
Appel has been a trustee of the Martin Hilti Family
Trust and Managing Director of the Hilti Foundation.
Since October 2006 he has been a Council Mem-
ber of Unitech International, a network of Europe’s
best technical universities.

Dr Hansjorg Frei (born in 1941, Swiss citizen, Doctor
of Law) has been a non-executive member of the
Board of Directors and Chairman of the Pension
Fund of the EMS Group since January 2003. Until
mid-2003 he held various leading positions in the
insurance industry, where his last position from 2000
was as a member of Senior Management at Credit
Suisse Financial Services (Head of International
Country Management). Before that, from 1991, he
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was a member of Senior Management in charge

of Swiss operations for the Winterthur Insurance
Company. From 2000 to 2003 he was Chairman of
the Swiss Insurance Association (SVV). Dr Hansjérg
Frei has been a non-executive member of the Board
of Directors of Béloise-Holding since 2004 and
Chairman of the SVP (Schweizerische Volkspartei,
Swiss People’s Partyl for the Canton of Zurich since

2006.

Dr Werner Prétorius (born in 1946, German citizen,
Doctor of Chemical Engineering) has been a non-
executive member of the Board of Directors since
September 2006. He spent almost 30 years with
BASF, where he accumulated a wide variety of na-
tional and international experience. From 1996 to
2006 he was successively Head of the Divisions of
Engineering Plastics, Styrenic Polymers and Petro-
chemicals. Dr Pratorius has also been a member of
the most important European trade organizations
for chemicals and plastics such as the Association of
Plastics Manufacturers in Europe (1994 —2004), the
Association of European Petrochemicals Producers
(2002 - 2006) and the European Petrochemical
Association (2001 - 2006).

Albert Reich (born in 1943, Swiss citizen, Chemical
Engineer] has been an executive member of the

Board of Directors

Board of Directors since January 2004. Between
1970 and 1998 he held various management posi-
tions within the EMS Group, in research, production,
application technology, marketing and sales.

He assumed responsibility for the EMS-PRIMID
Business Unit in 1999 and for the EMS-GRIVORY
Business Unit in 2001. From January 2004 until
December 2006 Albert Reich was a member of the
Senior Management of the EMS Group.

None of the non-executive members of the Board

of Directors have ever been a member of any Senior
Management within the EMS Group. None
currently have a direct or indirect business relation-
ship with companies in the EMS Group.

3.3 Cross-involvement

With the exception of Dr Hansjérg Frei, who has been
a non-executive member of the Board of Directors of
Baloise-Holding since 2004, no member of the
Board of Directors has any cross-involvements.

3.4 Elections and terms of office

Each member of the Board of Directors is elected
individually by the General Meeting for a one-year
term of office. There is no limit on the total term

of office; members may be re-elected.

Name Function Attendance at meetings
Board of Audit Compensation
Directors Committee Committee
Dieter Klug Chairman 7 8 1
Magdalena Martullo Vice-Chairman 7
and CEO
Egbert Appel Member 6 1
Dr Hansjorg Frei Member 7 8! 1
Dr Werner Prétorius Member 2
(from September 2006)
Albert Reich Member 7
Total meetings 7 8 1
Total duration (hours] 4-6 2-4 3

' Chairman



3.5 Internal organizational structure

Duties of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is the highest executive body
of the EMS Group. It is responsible for supervising
and monitoring the company’s management and
that of its affiliated companies which together form
the EMS Group. Every year at its constituent meet-
ing, the Board of Directors elects a Chairman and a
Vice-Chairman from among its members. The Board
of Directors has delegated most of the operational
management of the EMS Group to the CEQO.
Special tasks can be delegated to individual
members of the Board of Directors or to separate
special committees.

Board committees: Members list, tasks,
area of responsibility

Two committees exist: the Audit Committee and the

Compensation Committee. These Board committees
have assessment, advisory and monitoring functions
but no decision-making powers.

The Audit Committee consists of two non-executive,
independent members of the Board of Directors: Dr
Hansiérg Frei, Chairman, and Dieter Klug, member.
It assesses the effectiveness of external reporting,
internal finance and accounting, internal control
systems and compliance with accounting principles.
The Audit Committee makes recommendations to
the entire Board of Directors regarding presentation
of individual and consolidated financial statements
to the General Meeting. It also assesses the per-
formance and remuneration of the external auditors.

The Compensation Committee consists of three non-
executive members of the Board of Directors: Egbert
Appel, Chairman, Dr Hansjérg Frei, member, Dieter
Klug, member. The Compensation Committee is con-
cerned with the remuneration policy of the EMS
Group (Board of Directors, Senior Management,
senior executives).

Work methods of the Board of Directors
and its committees

The Board of Directors and its committees meet as
frequently as business demands. The Board of Di-
rectors meets at least six fimes a year. The Board of
Directors held seven meetings in 2006, each lasting
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between four and six hours. The Audit Committee
held eight meetings, each lasting between two and
four hours while the Compensation Committee held
one three-hour meeting.

The Head of Finance [CFO] also attends the meetings
of the Board of Directors. Other members of Senior
Management and Heads of Business Units are in-
vited to attend meetings of the Board of Directors
when it discusses matters relevant to their areas of
responsibility. A majority of the members of the
Board of Directors must be present for decisions to
be made. The Board of Directors makes decisions
and carries out elections with a majority of the
members present at the meeting. In the event of a tie
the Chairman has the casting vote. Resolutions can
also be passed by way of telephone conferences or
by circular, provided that no member requests dis-
cussion in person. Resolutions passed in this way
must be unanimous to be valid. Individual members
are obliged to abstain from voting on personal
matters or on matters involving persons with whom
they are closely associated.

Members of Senior Management are invited to
attend committee meetings when they discuss
matters relevant to their areas of responsibility. The
provisions relating to meetings and resolutions of
the Board of Directors and to the requirement for its
members to abstain, also apply to the committees.
At the next plenary meeting of the Board of
Directors after their committees have met, the
committee Chairmen report on their proceedings
and submit proposals to the Board for its decision.
Further details of internal organization can be found
in the Organizational Rules of the EMS Group

at www.ems-group.com/ar/organizationalrules.

3.6 Definition of areas of responsibility between
the Board of Directors and Senior Management

The Board of Directors makes decisions regarding
all matters not reserved by law, the Articles of Asso-
ciation or the Organizational Rules to the General
Meeting or another body. Subject to article 716a of
the Swiss Code of Obligations (non-transferable
and inalienable duties of the Board of Directors),
the Board of Directors has delegated most
operative management of the EMS Group to Senior
Management. These duties and responsibilities
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particularly include proposing the strategy for the
EMS Group to the Board of Directors, achieving the
operative and financial results of the EMS Group,
reviewing the budgets and medium-term plans of
Business Units, deciding on scheduled capital in-
vestments up to CHF 5 million and on unscheduled
capital investments up to CHF 0.5 million, reaching
decisions on the procurement of external capital
le.g. bonds, bank loans) up to CHF 30 million, issu-
ing guarantees in accordance with the guarantee
concept proposed fo the Board of Directors, receiv-
ing periodic reports on business performance and
all other significant events, deciding on the initiation
and conduct of legal proceedings and submitting
proposals to the Board of Directors for legal pro-
ceedings of fundamental significance, approving
the organization up to the level of employees di-
rectly subordinate to Heads of Business Units,
submitting proposals to the Board of Directors on
the acquisition and disposal of equity holdings,
assigning powers to the members of the foundation
council who protect the interests of the employer in
EMS Group pension schemes, proposing authorised
signatories to the Board of Directors, permitting
heads of Business Units and their direct subordi-
nates to accept seats on Boards of directors,
political office or honorary office, enacting the rules
of the EMS Group and maintaining personal
contact with senior managers of other companies
and with important customers.

3.7 Information and control instruments
vis-&-vis the Senior Management

At the end of each month the Board of Directors
receives a written report from the CEO regarding
business performance during that month and the
expected monthly result. On the 4™ working day of
the following month it receives the monthly income
statement with the most important key figures, which
are compared with the budgeted figures and those
of the previous year. It is also provided, in the same
detail, with monthly updated forecast calculations
for the end of the year. This serves to monitor the
achievability of the budget. If actual monthly results
deviate from the budget by more than 10%, the
CEO submits a report to the Board of Directors by
the middle of the following month analysing the
shortfall and detailing corrective measures, both
planned and already implemented. In addition the
Board of Directors receives consolidated quarterly
financial statements prepared in accordance with

IFRS. Along with the income statement, these mainly
provide information on the balance sheet, the cash-
flow account and changes in shareholders’ equity.
In addition, at each meeting of the Board of
Directors the CEO and CFO report on the course of
business and on all matters relevant to the Group,
while the two committee Chairmen report on the
matters they have dealt with, detailing their signifi-
cant findings and assessments and submitting
proposals accordingly. Every year the Board of
Directors discusses and approves the budget for the
following year, as well as rolling medium-term plan-
ning for the next three years. The CEO informs the
members of the Board of Directors of any extraordi-
nary events without delay by circular or other ap-
propriate means. At Board meetings, any member
of the Board may request information from other
members or from Senior Management on any of the
company's affairs. Between meetings of the Board
of Directors any member may request information
from the CEO on the course of business, and — with
the approval of the Chairman - on specific business
events, and/or may inspect business documents.

At their own discretion, members of the Board of
Directors visit group companies and participate in
the two-monthly Management Meetings held by
Senior Management with the Heads of the Business
Units in order to form an independent view of the
Group's operating activities and the implementation
of its strategy.

During the year under review Group Financial
Control conducted 16 audits at Group companies,
mainly focusing on bookkeeping and compliance.
Group Financial Control discusses all audit findings
in detail with the companies and Business Units
concerned, and the most significant measures are
agreed on. In the event of disagreement between
the auditors and the company audited, the different
positions are stated transparently. An audit report is
prepared containing the overall audit findings.
Members of the Audit Committee, the CEO and the
CFO each receive a copy of every audit report.
Following each audit report, the CEO and CFO
present the Audit Committee with the measures to
be implemented by Group management. All signifi-
cant measures are continuously monitored by the
Audit Committee. In the event of discrepancies the
CEO and CFO must comment on them and present
proposals for corrective measures. Although Group
Financial Control is subordinate to the CFO, it



reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee with regard to these activities. The legal
service of the EMS Group reports regularly to the
Board of Directors on any legal changes important
to EMS. Group Financial Control regularly keeps the
Audit Committee informed of changes in the field of
accounting. Twice a year the Audit Committee is
noftified of all litigation cases that are under way or
pending. Besides the status of the individual cases,
the report focuses on risks and opportunities they
represent, costs and other possible effects.

During the year under review a comprehensive T
audit, with focus on IT security, was conducted by a
specialised external consultant. A comprehensive
risk analysis of the pension arrangements of foreign
Group companies was also carried out by another
specialised external consultant.

Risk management constitutes an integral component
of planning and reporting activities at EMS. At Se-
nior Management and Business Unit level, threats
are identified annually as part of medium-term plan-
ning procedure and preparation of the budget for
the following year. They are then weighted accord-
ing to the gravity of the threat and probability of its
occurrence. The identification and assessment of
changes in risk play an important part in this
process. Measures are defined to reduce significant
risks. The CEO and CFO report to the Audit Com-
mittee half-yearly on the magnitude of these risks
and the implementation status of the measures
taken to counter them. They also report to the Board
of Directors in the course of planning discussions.

4. Senior Management

4.1 Members of the Senior Management/
4.2 Activities and vested interests

On December 31, 2006, Senior Management
of EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG consisted of the
following four persons:

Magdalena Martullo-Blocher (born in 1969, Swiss
citizen, Master of Business Administration) has been
executive Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors
since August 2002 and CEO since January 2004.
She joined the EMS Group in January 2001 and be-
came a member of the Board of Directors in August
2001. From 1996 until 2000 Magdalena Martullo
was with Rivella AG, where her last position was
Head of Marketing for Switzerland and member of
the company’s extended Senior Management.
From 1994 to 1996 she was Product Manager with
Johnson & Johnson AG, prior to which she worked
in various positions, both in Switzerland and
abroad. As CEO, Magdalena Martullo bears over-
all operating responsibility for the EMS Group.

She has been a member of the Executive Board of

SGCI Chemie Pharma Schweiz since June 2004.

Reto Fintschin (born in 1948, Swiss citizen, Engineer!
has been a member of Senior Management since
July 2006. He has been with EMS since 1974, inter-
rupted by four years as head of sales and marke-
ting with another Swiss company. He has held
various senior positions in sales and marketing with
the EMS Group, including CEO of the UK sales
company, Division Leader of Technical Thermoplas-
tics until 1998 and Division Leader of Technical
Fibres and Adhesives until 2000, when he assumed
responsibility for the Business Unit EMS-GRILTECH.

Peter Germann (born in 1959, Swiss citizen, Master
of Artsl has been the EMS Group’s Head of Finance
[CFO) since 1994 - interrupted by one year as
Head of Finance with the Ascom Group -

and a member of Senior Management since
January 2004. Peter Germann previously held a
variety of management positions, his last position
being Head of Finance with the Arbonia-Forster
Group.

Albert Reich (born in 1943, Swiss citizen, Chemical
Engineer) was a member of the EMS Group’s Senior
Management from January 2004 until December
2006. Since January 2004 he has also been an
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executive member of the Board of Directors.
Between 1970 and 1998 he held various manage-
ment positions within the EMS Group, in research,
production, application technology, marketing
and sales. He assumed responsibility for the
Business Unit EMS-PRIMID in 1999 and for the
Business Unit EMS-GRIVORY in 2001.

Members of Senior Management are nominated by
the CEO and appointed by the Board of Directors.
They are subordinate to the CEO, whom they assist
in the task of managing and supervising the

EMS Group. Senior Management meets every two
weeks. In addition, the Head of the Group
Secretariat attends these meetings in an advisory
capacity. The duties and responsibilities of Senior
Management are listed in section 3.6. They are also
given in the Organizational Rules of Senior
Management at www.ems-group.com/ar/
organizationalrules.

4.3 Management contracts

No management contracts with third parties exist.

5. Compensations, shareholdings and loans

5.1 Content and method of determining the
compensation and the shareholding programmes

The compensation system for members of the Board
of Directors and Senior Management consists of a
basic salary and a bonus, which is paid out
exclusively in cash. Bonus payments are not de-
pendent on the basic salary. The bonus is a major
component of the overall compensation package.
The principal criteria for setting the bonus are the
achievement of targets for net profit and sales and
the achievement of project objectives. Otherwise no
guidelines exist for the compensation system.

If targets are not achieved, the bonus may be lost.
The level of overall compensation depends on the
individual’s responsibilities, the complexity of the
assigned duties and market conditions. Individual
overall compensation packages are proposed by
the Compensation Committee and approved by the
Chairman of the Board of Directors, after consulta-
tion with the CEQ, in April of the following year.
They are paid out in May.

EMS has no shareholding programmes.

5.2 Compensations for acting members
of governing bodies

Compensation paid to executive members of
the Board of Directors and to members of Senior

Management in 2006 totalled CHF 2987 315.

Compensation paid to non-executive members
of the Board of Directors in 2006 totalled
CHF 1467 684.

No contractual severance payments were made.

5.3 Compensations for former members
of governing bodies

No compensation was paid to former members of
executive bodies.

5.4 Share dllotment in the year under review

No shares were allotted.

5.5 Share ownership

As of December 31, 2006, executive members of the
Board of Directors and members of Senior Manage-
ment and parties closely linked to such persons,
held together a total of 559 555 registered shares,
which is equivalent to 2.23% of voting rights.

As of the same date, non-executive members of the
Board of Directors as well as parties closely linked
to such persons, held together a total of 18 830 reg-
istered shares, which is equivalent to 0.08% of
voting rights.

5.6 Options

No options were granted.

5.7 Additional fees and remunerations

During the year under review, no invoices were
received from any member of the Board of Directors
or Senior Management or parties closely linked

to such persons, for additional services provided to

EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG or its subsidiaries.

5.8 Loans to members of governing bodies

No loans, advances or credits were advanced to
any member of the Board of Directors or Senior
Management or parties closely linked to such per-
sons. No loans to members of executive bodies are
outstanding from previous years.



5.9 Highest total compensation

The highest total compensation of a member of the
Board of Directors in the year under review was
CHF 1111566. No shares or options were allotted.

6. Shareholders' participation

Shareholders’ participation rights are laid down
in the Articles of Association of EMS-CHEMIE
HOLDING AG www.ems-group.com/ar/
articlesofassociation).

6.1 Voting-rights and representation restrictions

Voting-rights restrictions apply solely o nominees.
No rules exist governing the granting of exceptions.

A registered shareholder may only be represented
at the General Meeting by his legal representative,
by another shareholder entitled to vote, by the rep-
resentative of the executive bodies, by an independ-
ent proxy holder or a proxy of deposited shares.
Shares held by the company do not confer voting
rights at the General Meeting and do not bear a
dividend.

6.2 Statutory quorums

Except where the law provides otherwise, decisions
taken by the General Meeting are passed by an
absolute majority of the votes represented at the
General Meeting.

6.3 Convocation of the General Meeting
of shareholders

The ordinary General Meeting is convened in
accordance with legal requirements and the
company’s Articles of Association. It is convened by
a single publication in the Swiss Official Gazette of
Commerce and by written invitations sent to the
addresses of the shareholders and beneficiaries
entered in the share register. Extraordinary General
Meetings are held in the cases prescribed by law
and as required.

6.4 Agenda

One or more shareholders representing together
10% or more of the company’s shares may request
that a particular item be added to the agenda.
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A request to add an item to the agenda must be
submitted in writing at least 40 days in advance of
the General Meeting, specifying the subject to be
discussed and containing the proposed motion.

6.5 Inscriptions into the share register

The cut-off date for entering registered shareholders
in the register of shareholders so that they can
participate in the General Meeting is 20 days be-
fore the General Meeting. Registered shares sold
between the cut-off date and the General Meeting
do not carry voting rights. No rules exist governing
the granting of exceptions.

7. Changes of control and defence measures

7.1 Duty to make an offer

According to Article 3, paragraph 2 of the Articles
of Association, a party acquiring shares in EMS-
CHEMIE HOLDING AG is not obliged to submit a

public purchase offer.

72 Clauses on changes of control

No clauses on changes of control exist.

8. Auditors

8.1 Duration of the mandate and term of office
of the lead auditor

KPMG AG, Badenerstrasse 172, 8026 Zurich, have
acted as the statutory auditors of EMS-CHEMIE
HOLDING AG and as Group auditors since 2004.
The statutory and Group auditors are appointed by
the General Meeting for a one-year term of office.
Hanspeter Stocker has been the responsible auditor
in charge since 2004.

8.2 Auditing fees

The EMS Group paid KPMG AG a global total of
approximately CHF 482 000 for services relating to
the audit of the Group’s annual financial statements.
The net sales revenue audited by KPMG AG
accounts for approximately 54% of the EMS Group's
total net sales.
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8.3 Additional fees

KPMG AG charged a global total of approximately
CHF 390000 for additional management and tax-

consultancy services and due diligence audits.

8.4 Supervisory and control instruments pertaining
to the audit

The Audit Committee monitors the independence
and performance of the independent statutory audi-
tors on behalf of the Board of Directors and verifies
the financial reporting of EMS. It held eight meet-
ings during the year under review. The independent
statutory auditors were invited to aftend one
meeting.

Senior Management is responsible for financial
accounting and continuous financial reporting,
including the internal monitoring system.

The independent statutory auditors, KPMG AG,

are responsible for submitting an opinion on
whether the accounting records and the annual
financial statements comply with Swiss law and the
company's Articles of Association. The independent
Group auditors, KPMG AG, are responsible for
providing an assessment of the consolidated
financial statements lincome statement, balance
sheet, changes in equity, cash flow statement and
notesl, in accordance with the International Finan-
cial Reporting Standards (IFRS) published by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and with Swiss law. The Audit Committee is also
responsible for monitoring the relevant activities of
Senior Management and the independent statutory
auditors.

9. Information policy

EMS publishes quarterly net sales figures, together
with a commentary on the course of business and
the outlook for the future. The half-year and annual
financial statements are prepared in accordance
with IFRS. EMS also issues ad-hoc reports on impor-
tant events as and when they occur.

Calendar of events of the EMS Group

July 13, 2007
First-Half Report 2007 (Media conferencel

August 11, 2007:
Annual General Meeting 2007
of EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG

October 2007:
Third-Quarter Report 2007

February 2008:
Annual Results 2007 (Media conferencel

April 2008:
First-Quarter Report 2008

Further details regarding these dates can be found
at www.ems-group.com/ar/information.
Subscription to ad-hoc reports received by E-mail
can be made at www.ems-group.com/ar/contact.

Information is available on the website:
WWW.ems-group.com.

If you have any further enquiries, please contact:
EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG

Fuederholzstrasse 34

8704 Herrliberg

Switzerland

Phone +4144 9157000

Fax  +4144 9157002

info@ems-group.com
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2006 2005
Notes (CHF *000) (CHF "000)

Continued activities:
Net sales revenue from goods and services 1395946 1253330
Inventory changes, semi-finished and finished goods 17313 (3181)
Capitalized costs and other operating income ] 36832 28182
Operating income 1450091 1278331
Material expenses 2 866182 730670
Personnel expenses 3 206678 196896
Depreciation and amortization 9,24 51145 53893
Other operating expenses 4 79257 80468

Operating expenses 1203262 1061927
NET OPERATING INCOME (EBIT) 246829 216404

Income from equity-valuation of associated companies 6677 1563

Financial income 6 184800 67456

Financial expenses 7 73203 58080
NET FINANCIAL INCOME 118274 10939
NET INCOME FROM CONTINUED ACTIVITIES, BEFORE TAXES 365103 227 343

Income faxes 8 57436 45467
NET INCOME FROM CONTINUED ACTIVITIES 307667 181876
Discontinued activities:

Net income from discontinued activities, after taxes 25 0 843
NET INCOME 307667 182719
Of which attributable to:

Shareholders of EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG 297441 177134

Minority interests 17 10226 5585
Earnings per share in CHF from continued activities:

basic 28 12.99 127

diluted 28 12.65 127
Earnings per share in CHF from discontinued activities:

basic 28 - 0.03

diluted 28 - 0.03

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements: see pages 35-54.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet of the EMS Group

31.12.2006 31.12.2005

Notes (CHF *000) (CHF "000)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 595610 533542

Intangible assets 9 6622 7641

Property, plant and equipment 9 485376 477840

Financial assefs 9 99714 47440

Investments in associated companies 9 29405 25820

Other investments 9 244 1139

Other non-current financial assets 9 70065 20481

Deferred income tax assets 8 3898 621

CURRENT ASSETS 1732994 1816870

Inventories 10 226131 196739
Accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable 1 233706 213946

Income tax assets 94 201

Other receivables 12 67701 58398

Current financial assets 13 432848 948395

Cash and cash equivalents 14 172514 399191

TOTAL ASSETS 2328604 2350412

EQuITY 1102713 1082851

Equity, attributable to shareholders of EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG 1054885 1041279

Share capital 15 251 251

Retained earnings and reserves 757193 863894

Net income 297441 177134

Equity, attributable to minority interests 17 47828 41572

LIABILITIES 1225891 1267561

Non-current liabilities 886847 952576

Bonds 18 652082 734730

Option component of convertible bonds 34820 18128

Other non-current liabilities 20 9637 8783

Deferred income tax liabilities 8 128531 117283

Provisions 21 61777 73652

Current liabilities 339044 314985

Bank loans 19 15689 15624

Trade accounts payable 112101 95947

Income tax liabilities 61480 64846

Provisions 2 17315 16877

Other current liabilities 22 132459 121691

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2328604 2350412

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements: see pages 35- 54.
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Consolidated Changes in Equity of the EMS Group

(CHF "000) Notes Share  Capital  Retained  Treasury Gains/ Foreign Equity, Equity, Equity
capital  reserves  earnings shares  (losses)  exchange attributable aftributable
(share arising from ~ differences  to share- to
premium) IAS 39 holders of  minority
EMS-CHEMIE  interests
HOLDING AG
At 31.12.2003 261 0 1379612 0 73636 (12391) 1441118 34960 1476078
Changes in fair value
of financial instruments (131815) (131815) (131815)
Currency translation differences (5317)  (5317)  (1386)  (6703)
Net income/(expense) recognized
directly in equity 0 0 0 0 (131815  (5317) (137132)  (1386) (138518)
Net income recognized in income statement 183426 183426 6384 189810
Total recognized income and expense 0 0 183426 0 (131815  (5317) 46294 4998 51292
Transactions with treasury shares 937 (213508) (12577) (212577)
Redemption of share capital (10) (135207) 135217 0 0
Dividends paid (193943) (193943)  (2658) (196601)
At 31.12.2004 251 937 1233888  (78291)  (58179) (17708) 1080898 37300 1118198
Changes in fair value
of financial instruments 16 179682 179682 179682
Currency translation differences 11741 11741 2216 13957
Net income/(expense) recognized
directly in equity 0 0 0 0 179682 11741 191423 2216 193639
Net income recognized in income statement 177134 177134 5585 182719
Total recognized income and expense 0 0 177134 0 179682 11741 368557 7801 376358
Acquisition of minority interests 17 0 (1044) (1044
Transactions with treasury shares 1156 (47523) (46367) (46367)
Spin-off EMS-DOTTIKON 25 (264322) (264322) (264322)
Dividends paid (97487) (97487)  (2485) (99972)
At 31.12.2005 251 2093 1049213 (125814) 121503 (5967) 1041279 41572 1082851
Changes in fair value
of financial instruments 16 11220 11220 11220
Currency translation differences (5405 (5405) (859)  (6264)
Net income/(expense) recognized
directly in equity 0 0 0 0 11220 (5405) 5815 (859) 4956
Net income recognized in income statement 297441 297 441 10226 307667
Total recognized income and expense 0 0 297441 0 1220 (5405 303256 9367 312623
Transactions with treasury shares 83 (142059) (141976) (141976)
Dividends paid (147674) 147674y (3111) (150785)
At 31.12.2006 251 2176 1198980 (267873) 132723  (11372) 1054885 47828 1102713
2006 2005
Balance sheet equity ratio 47 4% 46.1%

Capital reserves are not eligible for distribution. Retained earnings include KCHF 50 (2005: KCHF 50) not eligible for distribution.
The proposal of the Board of Directors for the profit distribution of EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG, whose financial year closes on April 30, 2007, was communicated

on February 9, 2007.

The change of income taxes recognized directly in equity amounts to KCHF 7165 (2005: KCHF 13595) on securities and financial investments, of which current income

taxes KCHF 1498 (2005: KCHF 13595) and deferred income taxes KCHF 5667 (2005: KCHF 0), as well as KCHF 7 (2005: KCHF 98) on sale of freasury shares.

For further information and data refer to page 3, “Spotlight on Share Performance”.



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement of the EMS Group

2006 2005

Notes (CHF *000) (CHF "000)

Net income 307667 182719
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of infangible assets and property, plont and equipment 9, 24 51145 56840
(Profit)/loss from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,4 3989 2574
Increase/(decrease) of provisions 21 (167) (1733)
Increase/(decrease) of other non-current liabilities 230 (2733)
(Income)/expenses from the equity-valuation of associated companies (6677) (1563)
Impairment securities 7 0 2008
Impairment financial investments in current assets 7,24 0 1254

Value adjustments financial assets 9,24 8 (8)
Unrealized currency translation differences on foreign exchange positions 6137 5341
Change assets and liabilities of post-employment benefits, net 9,20 735 (1942)

Net inferest expense 6,7 20697 30361
Dividends b (14637) (19.301)
Income from sale of current financial assets 6 (158347) (31670)
Income from liguidation of other participations b (34) 0
Expenses for income taxes 8 57436 45686
OPERATING CASH FLOW BEFORE CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL 268182 267833
Cash flow from changes in working capital excluding cash and cash equivalents (13885) 21754
Taxes paid (59594) (28490)
Interest paid (22700) (25934)
Provisions used 21 (9239) (1724)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES A 162764 233439
(Purchase) of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 9 (64329) (49431)
Disposal of intangible assefs and property, plant and equipment 1,4,9 2454 3261
(Purchase) of financial assets 9 (50863) (288)
Disposal of financial assets 6,9 1184 1940
(Purchase)/disposal of marketable securities/financial investments in current assets 692288 133491
Interest received 12297 10224
Dividends received 16444 20596
(Purchase)/disposal of fully consolidated companies and of discontinued activities 25 0 (12090)
(Increase)/decrease of interest-bearing assets (1302) (150)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES B 608173 107553
Dividends paid (147674) (97487)
Dividends paid to minorities 17 (3111) (2485)
(Purchase) of treasury shares (142570) (68518)
Sale of treasury shares 594 22151
Acquisition of minority interests 17 0 (1044)
Repurchase of own bonds (99472) (155231)
Increase/(decrease) of interest-bearing liabilities (5342) (32277)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES C (397575) (334891)
CHANGE IN CURRENCY TRANSLATION D (39) (4697)
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A + B + C + D) 373323 1404
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 399191 397787
Increase/(decrease) of cash and cash equivalents 373323 1404
Cash and cash equivalents at year-end 14 172514 399191

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements: see pages 35- 54.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of the EMS Group

Consolidated accounting principles

General information on the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position, the results of
operations and the cash flows of the EMS Group.
The consolidation is based on individual financial
statements of subsidiaries prepared according to
uniform Group accounting principles and in accor-
dance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB). They also
comply with Swiss law.

The preparation of consolidated financial state-
ments and related disclosures in conformity with
IFRS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and revenues and expenses during the
period reported. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Estimates and assumptions are
reviewed periodically, and the effects of revisions
are reflected in the financial statements in the pe-
riod in which they are determined to be necessary.

Changes to the consolidated accounting principles

The IASB published a series of new and revised
standards and inferpretations, which took effect in
2006 and were implemented by the EMS Group on
January 1, 2006. This has no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the EMS
Group.

The introduction of IAS 19 (revised) “Employee
Benefits” resulted in additional disclosures on
pension plans; EMS Group has opted for the time
being not to adopt the accounting option to recog-
nize all actuarial gains and losses directly in
retained earnings.

Consistency

The principles of valuation and consolidation
remain unchanged from the previous year, with the
exception of the changes described to the left.

EMS-DOTTIKON was floated on the stock market
as an independent company on March 31, 2005,
and is treated as a discontinued operation in the
2005 financial statements. Therefore, in the income
statement for 2005 the net income from discontin-
ved operations is disclosed in a separate line for
three months. Since the spin-off was conducted in
the form of a transfer of subscription rights to the
existing shareholders of EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING
AG, it did not generate any cash proceeds for the
EMS Group. The sole effect of the discontinued
operations on the cash flow statement 2005 is there-
fore the outflow of EMS-DOTTIKON's holdings of
cash and cash equivalents, which is presented as a
net cash outflow from investment activities. Details
on the figures are provided in note 25.

Possible implications of new or revised standards
issued but not yet effective

The following new and revised standards and inter-
pretations, as they are relevant for the EMS Group,
were agreed by the IASB prior to the balance sheet
date of December 31, 2006 but do not come into
effect until a later date and were not applied early
in the present consolidated financial statements.
Their implications for the consolidated financial
statements of the EMS Group have not yet been
analyzed systematically, with the result that the
expected implications — as stated at the foot of the
table — represent only an initial assessment on the
part of management.
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Standard/Interpretation

Planned application

by the EMS Group

Entry into force

IAS 1 (revised) — Presentation of Financial
Statements: Explanatory notes on equity

* January 1, 2007 Financial year 2007

I[FRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosure

o January 1, 2007 Financial year 2007

IFRS 8 — Operating Segments: Disclosure

*** January 1, 2009 Financial year 2009

IFRIC 9 — Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

* June 1, 2006 Financial year 2007

IFRIC 10 - Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

* November 1,2006  Financial year 2007

*

There are not expected to be any significant implications for the consolidated financial statements of the EMS Group.

** The primary expectation is that there will be additional disclosures in the consolidated financial statements of the EMS Group.
*** The effects on the consolidated financial statements of the EMS Group cannot yet be determined with

sufficient certainty.

Scope of consolidation

The scope of consolidation includes all companies
in and outside Switzerland which are controlled -
directly or indirectly - by EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING
AG, holding more than 50% of the voting rights,

or by contracts or other agreements (see note 32
“List of subsidiaries and minority holdings”).

Joint ventures where the parties have joint control
are included using the equity method of accounting.
This method is also applied for the associated
companies, which are not directly or indirectly
controlled by EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG (share-
holding normally between 20% and 50% of voting
rightsl.

Shares in other companies (less than 20% of voting
rights) are valued at their market value (fair value).

Method of consolidation

The financial statements of majority-owned compa-
nies are fully consolidated. Assets and liabilities, in-
come and expenses are incorporated in full. Capital
consolidation is effected using the Anglo-Saxon
purchase method. Intercompany transactions and
relations have been eliminated in the course of
consolidation. Unrealized profits from intercompany
deliveries are eliminated in the income statement.
All assets and liabilities of acquired companies are

valued according to the accounting principles of the
EMS Group at the time of acquisition. Any positive
difference between the resulting shareholders’
equity and the cost of acquisition is capitalized as
goodwill. Goodwill is subject to an annual impair-
ment test. Results for acquired companies are
included in consolidation as from the date on which
control was transferred.

In case of disposal of companies the deconsolida-
tion is effected through the income statement from
the date control is relinquished, whereby the com-
panies’ results are included in the consolidation up
to such date.

Balance sheet date

The balance sheet date of subsidiaries is December
31. The balance sheet date of EMS-CHEMIE
HOLDING AG is April 30. In accordance with
uniform Group accounting principles an interim
closing is prepared for the holding company as of
December 31.

Valuation principles

The consolidated financial statements are based
on historical costs except for securities, other invest-
ments and derivative financial instruments, which
are valued at fair value, as well as bonds, which
are measured at amortized cost.
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Intangible assets

Next to patents, frade marks and software, this item
consists of goodwill acquired in acquisitions since
January 1,1995. Goodwill represents the difference
between consideration paid and the fair value of
the net assets and contingent liabilities acquired.
Until December 31, 2004, amortization periods of
goodwill were determined individually, based on
useful lives. The maximum useful life applied was
20 years. In conformity with IFRS 3, goodwill is no
longer amortized from January 1, 2005, and is
instead subject to an annual impairment test. All
goodwill originating in prior years had already
been fully amortized by January 1, 2005 and the
cumulative amortization was accordingly offset
against historical cost.

Other intangible assets are measured at cost less
amortization and impairments. Amortization of
patents, frade marks and software is calculated us-
ing the straight-line method based on their limited
useful economic lives, generally over 3 to 12 years.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are shown at pur-
chase price or manufacturing cost less depreciation
and impairments. Interest expenses are not capital-
ized. Assets are depreciated using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives
are estimated in ferms of the asset’s physical life
expectancy, corporate policy on asset renewals and
technological and commercial obsolescence. The
value of the capitalized property, plant and equip-
ment is periodically reviewed and an impairment
loss is recorded when the carrying amount exceeds
the recoverable amount.

Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Investments in improvements or renewals of assets
are capitalized if they significantly extend service
life, increase capacity or provide a substantial im-
provement in the quality of production performance.

Depreciation periods are as follows:
- Lland: normally not depreciated
- Plant under construction:
normally not depreciated
- Buildings: 25-50 years
- Technical plant and machinery: 7-25 years
- Other property, plant and equipment: 5-15 years

leases

Assets held under leasing agreements which may
be considered as an asset purchase in economic
terms (finance leases) are capitalized as property,
plant and equipment at the estimated present value
of the underlying lease payments and depreciated
over their useful lives or the leasing period if shorter.
Leasing commitments are shown under other current
or non-current liabilities as appropriate. Financing
costs are charged to the income statement over the
leasing period in such a manner that the periodic
costs are correct.

Payments on leased assets defined as “operating
leases” and having a rental character are expensed
over the lease period.

Financial assets within non-current assets

Shares in associated companies are included using
the equity method.

Other investments are classified as “available for
sale” and the valuation is the same as described
under “securities”.

Inventories

Inventories used for production are valued at their
historical purchase or production cost or at their net
realizable value, whichever is lower. Inventories are
valued using the “fifo” (first-in, first-out] method.
Besides individual costs, the cost of production also
includes a proportionate allocation of manufacturing
overheads.

Accounts receivable

This item is measured on the basis of the original
invoiced amount less allowances for doubtful
accounts. Such allowances are formed if there are
objective indications that outstanding amounts will



not or only partially be collected. The allowance
represents the difference between the carrying
amount of the receivable and the recoverable
amount.

Securities

Securities include marketable securities traded on
stock exchanges and are classified as available-
for-sale. Initial measurement of all security transac-
tions is done at the date of fulfillment of the contract
(settlement date accounting) at cost value including
transaction costs. Subsequent measurement is done
at market value (fair valuel with changes recorded
in equity and only transferred to the income state-
ment at the moment of the sale or in case of an
impairment. Impairment is assumed when there is a
significant or prolonged decline in the market value
below its cost. According to the guidelines of the
EMS Group a significant or prolonged decrease
exists if the market value (fair valuel of securities is
below its cost for a period of nine months or by
more than 20%. If the loss in market value

(fair valuel is less than 20% or lasts less than nine
months, management decides whether the loss has
to be considered permanent.

Financial assets within current assets

The shareholding in Lonza Group AG is stated
under financial assets within current assets. The
valuation is the same as described under “securities”.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
bank account balances and short or medium-term
deposits maturing within three months. Cash and
cash equivalents are valued at their nominal value.
This definition is also used for the cash flow state-
ment.

Bonds and non-current bank loans

Debenture bonds and non-current bank loans are
recognized initially at the proceeds received, net of
transaction costs incurred. In subsequent periods,
debenture bonds and non-current bank loans are
stated at amortized cost. Convertible bonds are
split into a liability component and an option com-
ponent at date of issue and are shown separately
in the balance sheet. The fair value of the liability
component is determined on the basis of the
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present value of the principal plus the present value
of the interest payable over the contractual period
using the effective interest rate at inception. At date
of issue the value of the option component results by
deduction of the liability component from the pro-
ceeds of the bond issue. With conventional convert-
ible bonds, the holder acquires the right to convert
into shares of the issuer. The option therefore consti-
tutes an equity component. In the case of the con-
vertible bonds issued by the EMS Group, there is an
option fo convert into registered shares of Lonza
Group AG or registered shares of EMS-CHEMIE
HOLDING AG. The option component is therefore
treated as a debt instrument, and is measured at
fair value in subsequent years and adjusted through
the income statement.

Bonds and non-current bank loans are classified as
current if they are due to be repaid within twelve
months after the balance sheet closing date, even if
an agreement has been concluded on the long-term
refinancing or rescheduling of payment commit-
ments after the balance sheet closing date but

prior to the approval of the financial results for
publication.

Liabilities and deferred income

This item includes current and non-current debts,
valued at the amount of repayment, and deferred
income.

Provisions

Provisions are set up for legal or other liabilities if
these liabilities resulting from a past event and
existing at balance sheet date will most probably
bring about a cash outflow and if the amounts can
be reliably estimated.

Employee benefits

All subsidiaries in Switzerland have their own,
legally independent pension plans that are inde-
pendently managed. They are financed through
contributions from employers and employees.
Present and former employees (or their surviving
dependants) will receive benefits upon reaching the
age limit and/or in the event of incapacity or death.
For the purposes of the consolidated financial state-
ments, future pension obligations are calculated on
the basis of actuarial methods complying with IFRS.
In the case of defined benefit obligations, the
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present value of the projected benefit obligation is
assessed using the projected unit credit method on
the basis of completed and expected years of
service, the expected pay trend and the adjustment
of pensions. Costs for this provision [“expense
recognized in the income statement”] are calculated
annually and carried to the income statement.
Changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in
the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the average remaining period of service of employ-
ees when they exceed the limit of 10% of the plan
assets or 10% of the plan obligations. Employees of
subsidiaries abroad are insured by governmental
institutions or independent defined contribution
pension plans.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial measurement of all derivative financial
instruments is done at the date of transaction (trade
date accounting! at cost value including transaction
costs. Subsequent measurement is done at market
value (fair value) within accrued income and
deferred income respectively. Changes in fair value
are shown within the financial income.

Net sales revenue

Net sales revenue includes the invoiced amounts
for supplied goods and services less diminished
proceeds.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs are charged to
the income statement for the year in which they
incur under the following headings: wages and
salaries, material expenses and amortization on
research and development assets. Research and
development assets used over a long period of time
are classified under “technical plant and machinery”
and are amortized over the estimated period of
economic use.

Development costs are capitalized only and insofar
as it can be assumed with a high degree of proba-
bility that sufficient future income will be generated
to cover the costs arising in connection with the de-
velopment of the product or process.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of non-current assets not
valued at fair value are reviewed at balance sheet
date. If there are any indications of permanent
impairment, the recoverable amount is determined.
The recoverable amount corresponds to the higher
of the net selling price or the value in use. In cases
where the carrying amount is higher than the
recoverable amount, the difference is booked in the
income statement.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements of the individual Group
companies are presented in the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the respec-
tive company operates (functional currency).

The consolidated financial statements are prepared
in Swiss francs, the Group's reporting currency.
Financial statements in foreign currencies are trans-
lated as follows: current assets, non-current assets
and liabilities at year-end exchange rates. All items
in the income statement and the net income are
translated using the average exchange rate for the
year. These exchange rate differences are carried to
equity without affecting net income (translation
adjustment].

In case of disposal of a subsidiary abroad,

the translation difference, accumulated during the
period when the subsidiary was a consolidated
company, is added to profit (or loss) from sale of this
company.

The foreign currency positions in the financial state-
ments of the consolidated companies are translated
as follows: Foreign currency transactions are trans-
lated at the exchange rate of the transaction day.
At year-end the balances of foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rate prevailing at year-
end. The differences are recognized in the income
statement (transaction gains and losses).



The most important exchange rates are:

Average Year-end

exchange rates  exchange rates

Unit 2006 2005 2006 2005

Euro EUR 1 1573 1.548  1.606 1.557
US Dollar Usp 1 1253 1246 1220 1310
Japanese Yen Y 100 1.077 135 1.027 117
Taiwan Dollar TWD 100  3.852 3871 3740 3990
Chinese Renminbi ~ CNY 100 1572 1521 1560 16.20

Income taxes

Provisions for deferred income taxes are recognized
to reflect the tax impact on differences in the valua-
tion of assets and liabilities for Group consolidation
purposes and for local taxation purposes. These
provisions are continuously adjusted to take account
of any changes to local fiscal law. Provisions for
deferred taxation are set up using the balance sheet
liability method, under which deferred tax assets or
liabilities are set up for all temporary differences be-
tween the tax values and the values entered in the
consolidated Group accounts. A deferred tax asset
is recognized only fo the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilized.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share are based on the consolidated
net income attributable to the shareholders of
EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG, which is divided by
the weighted average number of shares issued.
The diluted earnings per share figure additionally
includes all the shares that could potentially be
issued following the exercising of option or conver-
sion rights, for instance.

Earnings per share are calculated on the basis of
continuing operations as well as discontinued oper-
afions.
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Segment reporting

Segment reports are presented primarily by
business area and secondarily by geographical
region. The segmentation is prepared to the level of
EBIT. A splitting of financial income and expenses
and of taxes is not useful because those functions
are executed on Group level. All assets and
liabilities are contributed to the business area or
geographical region either direct or via useful rate
assessment. The positions not segmented are shown
separately. For the business area assignment

of Group companies, please refer to note 32

“List of subsidiaries and minority holdings”.

Financial risk management

Foreign currency risks

The EMS Group uses derivative financial instruments
in the usual course of business to cover the risks.
Different risk positions, composed of assets and
liabilities and future commitments, are judged and
managed by the treasury for the whole Group.
Additionally, the liquidity required for the day-to-
day operations has to be available at all times.

The hedging policy of the EMS Group is set out in
writing and is supervised. The results of the hedge
program are continuously reported to Senior
Management and to the Board of Directors. The
treasury management is authorized to entirely or
partially hedge exposures within the framework of
the defined currency policy. The EMS Group hedges
positions if the costs in relation to the risks are
justified.

The EMS Group mostly uses forward currency and
option contracts to hedge the risk of value losses in
cash flow terms resulting from balance sheet and in-
come statement items held in foreign currencies.

Credit risks

Credit risks arise from the possibility that the coun-
terparty fo a transaction may be unable or unwilling
to meet their obligations, causing a financial loss to
the EMS Group. Fixed-term deposits and derivative
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financial instruments are only entered info with
counterparties that have a high credit standing.
Trade receivables are subject to a policy of active
risk management focusing on the assessment of
country risk, credit availability, ongoing evaluation
of credit standing and account monitoring proce-
dures. There are no significant concentrations within
counterparty credit risks. Within trade receivables,
this is due to the EMS Group’s large number of
customers and their wide geographical spread,
which are continuously verified. Country risk limits
and exposures are continuously verified. The
exposure of other financial assets to credit risk

is controlled by setting a policy for limiting credit
exposure to high-quality counterparties, ongoing
reviews of credit ratings, and limiting individual
aggregate credit exposure accordingly.

Risks of interest rate changes

The EMS Group uses various instruments to secure
financial costs and to hedge changes in interest
rates.

Market risk of financial assets

Changes in the market value of certain financial
assets and derivative instruments can affect the net
income or the financial position of the EMS Group.
Non-current financial assets are held for strategic
purposes and marketable securities are held for
fund management purposes. The risk of loss in
value is reduced by reviews prior to investing and
continuous monitoring of the future performance of
investments and changes in their risk profile. Invest-
ments in equities, bonds, debentures and other fixed
income instruments are entered into on the basis
of approved EMS Group guidelines with regard to
liquidity and credit rating.

Hedge accounting

For the hedging of foreign currency risks and risks of
interest rate changes no hedge accounting is used.

Fair values

The carrying amounts for securities and financial
assets stated at fair value are calculated at stock-
exchange prices applicable on the balance sheet
date. Values for derivative financial instruments
are based on replacement values or recognized
valuation models.

Significant estimates and assumptions made
by management

Significant measurement and accounting methods

Accounting procedures require management to
make certain estimates and assumptions that may
have a material effect on the consolidated financial
statements if the actual results differ from these
estimates and assumptions. This applies to the
following areas in particular.

Impairment of non-current assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equip-
ment and intangible assets are subject to an annual
impairment test. To ascertain whether impairment
has occurred, estimates are made of the expected
future cash flows arising from the use and possible
disposal of such assets. Significant assumptions are
made in relation to such calculations, including
sales figures, margins and discounting rates.

It is also possible for useful lifes to be reduced, the
intended use of property, plant and equipment to
change, production sites to be relocated or closed,
and production plants to generate lower-than-
expected sales in the medium term. Accordingly,
the actual cash flows may differ from the estimated
discounted future cash flows. The carrying amounts
for property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets are shown in note 9.

Provisions for litigation risks and other provisions

In the course of their ordinary business operations,
Group companies may be involved in legal pro-
ceedings. Provisions for litigation risks and other
provisions are measured using available information
on the basis of the realistically expected net cash
outflow, if considered necessary. Depending on the



outcome of such proceedings, claims that are not
covered or only partially covered by provisions or
insurance benefits may arise against the Group.
Other provisions primarily cover warranty claims
arising from the sale of goods or services and are
subject to uncertainty in terms of scope, timing, and
in some cases the likelihood of occurrence. Future
reporting periods may therefore be affected by
changes in the estimates of expected or actual cash
outflows. The carrying amounts for provisions are
shown in note 21.

Securities and financial assets within current assets

The EMS Group has classified these items as avail-
able-for-sale, which means that fluctuations in their
fair value are recognized in equity until the date of
sale, provided there is no permanent impairment.
The assessment as to whether impairment has
occurred depends on the duration and extent of the
decline based on clear criteria. However, it also
requires that management makes estimates with
regard to future economic developments, which
may differ from the views of the financial markets,
the consequence of which may be corresponding
gains or losses on sale. The carrying amounts for
securities and financial assets within current assets
are shown in note 13.

Employee benefits

The EMS Group operates various retirement plans
on behalf of its employees. To determine liabilities
and expenses, the plan must first be classified in ac-
cordance with the principle of substance over form,
i.e. whether it is a defined contribution or defined
benefit pension plan. In the case of defined benefit
plans, statistical assumptions are made in order

to estimate future developments. They include as-
sumptions and estimates concerning an appropriate
discount rate, the expected income from the
contracting out of plans in individual countries, and
assumptions with regard to growth rates for pay.

In their actuarial calculations to determine the retire-
ment benefit liabilities, the actuaries also use stafisti-
cal information such as mortality tables and the

likelihood of departure. When such parameters alter
due to changes in the economic situation or differ-
ent market conditions, subsequent results may differ
significantly from the actuarial opinions and calculo-
tions. Such differences can have significant implica-
tions for the cost of, and income from, employee
benefit plans in the medium term. The carrying
amounts of reported employee retirement assets
and liabilities are shown in notes 9 and 20.

Taxes

Measurement of current direct and indirect tax
liabilities is subject to interpretation of the tax legis-
lation in the countries concerned. The accuracy of
tax declarations and appropriateness of liabilities
are judged in the context of final assessments or
inspections by the tax authorities. This can result in
significant adjustments being made in relation to tax
expenses. Furthermore, the judgment as to whether
tax-loss carry forwards can be capitalized requires
critical assessment of their usability in terms of
netting with future profits, which are dependent on
numerous imponderables.
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Breakdown by business area (Primary segment)

(CHF *000)
Net sales revenue Depreciation, amortization and

impairment in intangible assefs and Net operating

Net sales with other segments Net sales with third parties Total net sales property, plant and equipment”) income (EBIT)
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
PERFORMANCE POLYMERS 174 233 1265662 117741 1265836 1117974 40430 43079 214129 179228
FINE CHEMICALS/ ENGINEERING 0 0 130284 135589 130284 135589 10715 10814 32700 37176
Subtotal segments 174 233 1395946 1253330 1396120 1253563 51145 53893 246829 216404

- Internal net sales (174) (233) (174) (233)

Total EMS Group 0 0 1395946 1253330 1395946 1253330 51145 53893 246829 216404

For a description of the business areas see pages 8 - 10 (“General Information on the Financial Year”).

Investments Income from [nvestments in
Segment in intangible assets and equity-valuation of associated
Segment assets? liabilities® property, plant and equipment associated companies companies
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
PERFORMANCE POLYMERS 932567 860541 418798 383403 63016 39791 6677 1563 29405 25820
FINE CHEMICALS/ENGINEERING 111270 116465 104502 115676 1313 8966 0 0 0 0
Subtotal segments 1043837 977006 523300 499079 64329 48757 6677 1563 29405 25820
Non-segment assefs/liabilities 1284767 1373406 702591 768482
Total EMS Group 2328604 2350412 1225891 1267561 64329 48757 6677 1563 29405 25820
Breakdown by geographical region (Secondary segment)
(CHF"000)
Investments
Total net sales revenue Total net sales revenue Net operating in intangible assets and
(customers) (production) income (EBIT) Segment assets? property, plant and equipment
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Switzerland 66627 5577 832339 747623 170745 169842 660069 620399 51125 30524
European Union (EU) 859941 797481 328158 302089 45317 20358 179014 168672 6485 9633
North America 126693 113514 66120 69626 4314 7749 82017 77468 4630 1937
Asia 284739 231440 169329 133992 26453 18455 122737 110467 2089 6663
Others 57946 55178 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Subtotal segments 1395946 1253330 1395946 1253330 246829 216404 1043837 977006 64329 48757
Non-segment assefs 1284767 1373406
Total EMS Group 1395946 1253330 1395946 1253330 246829 216404 2328604 2350412 64329 48757

Invoicing and cost attribution between segments are subject to the same conditions as with third parties.

! See note 9.
2) Segmented assets: Assets without cash and cash equivalents, current financial assets, fixed deposits in other non-current financial assets and investments in associated companies.
% Segmented liabilities: Liabilities without current and non-current bank loans, bonds and option component of convertible bonds.
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2006 2005
Notes (CHF "000) (CHF "000)
1 Capitalized costs and other operating income
Capitalized costs 13972 9325
Other operating income 20787 15573
Real estate income 1946 1956
Income from disposal of property, plant and equipment 127 1328
Total capitalized costs and other operating income 36832 28182
2 Material expenses
Material and warehouse expenses 832394 702830
Subcontractor salaries 5675 4359
Energy expenses 28113 23481
Total material expenses 866182 730670
3 Personnel expenses
Woages and salaries 169 627 163970
Expenses for defined benefit plans 11963 5177
Legal/ contractual social insurance 25088 27749
Total personnel expenses 206 678 196 896
Employee benefits
The following figures give an overview of the Swiss pension plans:
Present value of funded obligations (448 396) (429 733)
Fair value of plan assets 423887 402356
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations (24 509) (27377
Liability for long-service leave 0 0
Cash-settled share-based payment liability 0 0
Total employee benefits (24 509) (27 377)
Unrecognizable amount (10292 (6166)
Actuarial losses, not accounted for 48031 47508
Total recognized net assets in the Group balance sheet
for independent defined benefit plans 13230 13965

There are no unfunded obligations.

The Group makes contributions to a contributory defined benefit plan that
provides pensions for employees upon retirement, disability and death.

The plan entitles a retired employee to receive an annual payment equal

to 6.8% (2005: 6.8%) of the retirement assets. Disability and death pensions
are defined as fixed ratios of the salary insured.
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2006 2005
Notes (CHF "000) (CHF "000)
The balance sheet shows the following
Surplus recognized in financial assets as pension assets (see note 9] 18499 19484
Deficit recognized in other non-current liabilities as liabilities
from employee benefits [see note 20) (5269) (5519
Total recognized net assets in the Group balance sheet 13230 13965
Plan assets consist of the following
Loans to the employer 8011 6000
Liquid assets 104 034 88956
Bonds 155044 123600
Real estate 21180 23600
Equities 135618 160200
Total plan assets 423887 402356
Movement in the liability for defined benefit obligations
Liability for defined benefit obligations at 1. 1. 429733 403030
Benefits paid by the plan (7892 (8283)
Current service costs and interest (see below! 28746 27218
Net curtailments (1) 0
Settlements (7571) [5550)
Actuarial losses (see next pagel 5381 13318
Liability for defined benefit obligations at 31.12. 448 396 429733
Movement in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at 1. 1. 402 356 341222
Contributions paid into the plan 18081 16469
Benefits paid by the plan (7 892] (8283)
Expected return on plan assets 20118 17061
Net curtailments (1118 0
Settlements (7571] (55501
Actuarial gains/(losses! [see next pagel (87) 41437
Fair value of plan assets at 31.12. 423887 402356
Expense recognized in the income statement
Current service costs 18841 15580
Interest on obligation 9905 11638
Expected return on plan assets (20118 (17061)
Recognized actuarial gains and losses (see next pagel 4946 3643
Effect of curtailments 1117 0
Effect of the limit in paragraph 58 (b) 4125 (18471)
Employee’s contributions (6853) (6782
ERIS (Expense Recognized in the Income Statement) 11963 5177

The expense is recognized in personnel expenses.




2006 2005
Notes (CHF *000) (CHF *000)
Change of recognized net assets
At 1.1, 13965 9455
ERIS (Expense Recognized in the Income Statement) (11963 (5177
Employer's contribution 11228 9687
At 31.12. 13230 13965
Actual return on plan assets 20031 58498
Not recognized actuarial gains and losses
Cumulative amount at 1.1 47 509 79271
Actuarial gains and losses of the period 5468 (28119
Amortization during the period (4946) (3643)
Cumulative amount at 31.12. 48031 47 509
Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date
[expressed as weighted averages):
Discount rate at 31.12. 2.5% 2.5%
Expected return on plan assets at 1. 1. 5.0% 5.0%
Future salary increases 1.5% 1.5%
Future pension increases 0.5% 0.5%
The expected long-term rate of return is based on the portfolio as a whole
and not on the sum of the returns on individual asset categories. The return is
based on historical returns, without adjustments.
In Switzerland health care costs are not paid to employees.
Historical information
Present value of the defined benefit obligation 448 396 429733
Fair value of plan assets (423887 (402 356)
Deficit in the plan 24 509 27377
Experience gains/l(losses) arising on plan liabilities (5381) 0
Experience gains/llosses) arising on plan assets (87) 41437
The Group expects to pay KCHF 8 697 in contributions to defined benefit
plans in 2007.
4 Other operating expenses
Rents 8193 7872
Repairs and maintenance 20720 19161
Insurance, duties, fees 7 204 7813
Administration, promotion 28450 27870
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4116 3714
Other operating expenses 10574 14038
Total other operating expenses 79257 80468
5  Research and development
Expenditures for research and development amount to 50005 46110
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2006 2005
Notes (CHF *000) (CHF "000)
6 Financial income
Interest from related parties and associated companies 0 2
Other interest income 11782 11197
Dividends on securities in working capital 14 630 19294
Dividends from other companies 7 7
Income from sale of current financial assets 158 347 31670
Income from liquidation of other participations 34 0
Changes in fair value on derivative financial instruments, net 0 5286
Total financial income 184800 67 456
7 Financial expenses
Interest to related parties and associated companies 94 52
Other interest 24136 32328
Interest expense on amortized liability component of convertible bonds 8249 8673
Impairment securities 0 2008
Impairment financial investments in current assets 0 1254
Changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments, net 29395 0
Loss on repurchase own bonds 1260 10504
Foreign exchange losses, net 7676 663
Bank charges and commissions 2393 2598
Total financial expenses 73203 58080
In 2005 an impairment loss was recognized in the income statement on
securities and financial investments as the decline in fair values is classified as
permanent according to the impairment policy of the EMS Group.
8  Income taxes
Current income taxes 54799 57497
Deferred income taxes 2637 (12030
Total income taxes 57436 45467
The ultimate holding company is incorporated in Switzerland.
The subsidiaries operate in different countries with different tax laws and
tax rates. The effective income tax expenses differed from the expected
income tax expenses as follows:
Breakdown of the income tax expenses
Net income before income taxes 365103 227343
Expected income tax rate 22.1% 25.1%
Expected income taxes 80863 56950
Use of tax losses carried forward not capitalized (510 (1447
Change in deferred tax assets not having been set up (1416 2126
Tax exemption/ Expenses not being deductible for tax purposes (13404) (13324)
Taxes from previous years and tax holidays (6816] 5852
Impact of changed deferred income tax rates (951) (4997
Other (330! 307
Effective income taxes 57436 45467
Effective income tax rate 15.7% 20.0%
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Notes

2006
(CHF "000)

2005
(CHF "000)

Deferred income taxes:
Change in recognized assets/liabilities

Deferred income

Deferred income

Deferred income Deferred income

tax assets tax liabilities tax assets tax liabilities
At 1.1, 621 117283 238 174732
Change in scope of consolidation 0 0 0 (46 174)
Increase via income statement 3466 7029 353 4838
Decrease via income statement (162 (1088) 0 (16515)
Income taxes recognized directly in equity 0 5667 0 0
Translation differences (27) (360) 30 402
At 31.12. 3898 128 531 621 117283
Note to the deferred income tax liabilities
Calculation according to the “balance sheet
liability method”:
Deferred income taxes on non-current assets 108012 99914
Deferred income taxes on current assets 18942 15924
Deferred income taxes on liabilities 1577 1445
Total deferred income tax liabilities 128 531 117283
Tax loss carryforwards
Tox loss Tox loss
carryforwards Tax effect carryforwards Tax effect
Total tax loss carryforwards not considered
in the balance sheet 26857 9774 30412 11069
Of which to be carried forward for up to:
1 year 0 0 0 0
2 years 0 0 0 0
3 years 4 ] 0 0
4 years Q0 25 4 ]
5 years 510 143 84 24
More than 5 years 26253 9605 30324 11044
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Notes

9 Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, financial assets

I. Intangible assets

Gooduwil Patents, Others, Total
trade indl.

(CHF *000) marks advances
At 1.1.2005
Cost 22090 9723 18716 50529
Accumulated amortization and impairment (22090) (5999) (11898) (39987)
Net book value 0 3724 6818 10542
2005
A1 0 3724 6818 10542
Change in scope of consolidation 0 0 (936) (936)
Additions 0 14 680 694
Disposals 0 0 419) 419)
Amortization 0 (1201) (2181) (3362)
Impairment 0 (1540) (619) (2159)
Redlassifications 0 1800 1464 3264
Translation differences 0 7 30 37
At 31.12. 0 2804 4837 7641
Cost 0 11045 15585 26630
Accumulated amortization and impairment 0 (8241) (10748) (18989)
Net book value 0 2804 4837 7641
2006
A1 0 2804 4837 7641
Additions 0 92 1482 1574
Disposals 0 0 (395) (395)
Amortization 0 (1341) (1842) (3183)
Impairment 0 (1600) 0 (1600)
Redlassifications 0 1998 522 2520
Translation differences 0 3l 3 65
At 31.12. 0 1984 4638 6622
Cost 0 13183 15881 29064
Accumulated amortization and impairment 0 (11199) (11243) (22442)
Net book value 0 1984 4638 6622

The other intangible assets mainly contain capitalized software usage rights.
The cost of fully amortized goodwill was offset with the accumulated amortization and impairment at 1.1.2005.
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Il. Property, plant and equipment
Land Buildings Technical Furniture, Plant under Toal
ind. plant, EDP construction
development machinery, equipment, and payments
(CHF *000) cost R&D plants vehicles in advance
At 1.1.2005
Cost 28542 322269 976173 65881 36604 1429469
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (528) (160023) (529495) (42338) (420) (732804)
Net book value 28014 162246 446678 23543 36184 696 665
2005
Ar T 28014 162246 446678 23543 36184 696 665
Change in scope of consolidation (8884) (37955) (158723) (3559) (4941) (214062)
Additions 0 963 5375 2780 39619 48737
Disposals (1534) (608) 192) (1353) 0 (5416)
Depreciation (755) (5794) (35267) (5107) 0 (46923)
Impairment 0 (2760) (1616) 0 0 (4376)
Redlassifications 84 3750 40875 3258 (51231) (3264)
Translation differences 459 1947 3195 373 505 6479
At 31.12. 17384 121789 298596 19935 20136 477840
Cost 18752 264853 736996 55294 20560 1096455
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (1368) (143064) (438400) (35359) (424) (618615)
Net book value 17384 121789 298596 19935 20136 477840
2006
AT 17384 121789 298596 19935 20136 477840
Additions 0 1189 5155 2209 54202 62755
Disposals (428) (340) (3205) (280) (1795) (6048)
Depreciation (39) (8203) (33692) (4428) 0 (46362)
Redlussifications 0 5617 27341 2689 (36167) (520)
Translation differences (8) (421) (181) 19 (68) (2289)
At 31.12. 16909 119631 292384 20144 36308 485376
Cost 18282 270582 755424 56006 36745 1137039
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (1373) (150951) (463 040) (35862) (437) (651663)
Net book value 16909 119631 292384 20144 36308 485376

Fire insurance value is KCHF 1382693 (2005: KCHF 1428978).
Property, plant and equipment are insured at replacement values.

Due to a systematic review and check of usability of manufacturing line in 2005, the following impairments were booked on assets used
in the manufacturing process:

Year Amount (ategory Segment

2005: KCHF 619 Other intangible assets Performance Polymers
KCHF 2760 Buildings Performance Polymers
KCHF 1616 Technical plant, machinery Performance Polymers

Due to a review of production strategy, the book values were impaired as follows:

2006: KCHF 1600 Patents, trade marks Fine Chemicals/Engineering

2005: KCHF 1540 Patents, trade marks Fine Chemicals/Engineering

~
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Notes

[11. Financial assets

Investments in Other Other non-current financial assets
associated companies investments Pension Other Total
assefs non-current

(CHF "000) Investments Goodwill Total IAS19 (rev.) finandial assets
At 1.1.2005
Cost/Fair value 23064 3430 26494 1140 37045 34529 71574
Accumulated depreciation/

amortization and impairment 0 (3430) (3430) (37) 0 (29968) (29968)
Net book value 23064 0 23064 1103 37045 4561 41606
2005
At 1.1 23064 0 23064 1103 37045 4561 41606
Change in scope of consolidation 0 0 0 0 (21476) (1897) (23373)
Additions/ Increase 1662 0 1662 0 3915 288 4203
Disposals/ Decrease (1431) 0 (1431) Q) 0 (1939) (1939)
Depreciation/Amortization 0 0 0 38 0 (30) (30)
Translation differences 2525 0 2525 Q) 0 14 14
At 31.12. 25820 0 25820 1139 19484 997 20481
Cost/Fair value 25820 0 25820 1139 19484 30285 49769
Accumulated depreciation/

amortization and impairment 0 0 0 0 0 (29288) (29288)
Net book value 25820 0 25820 1139 19484 997 20481
2006
At 1.1 25820 0 25820 1139 19484 997 20481
Additions/ Increase 4870 0 4870 0 0 50863 50863
Disposals/ Decrease 0 0 0 (890) (985) (260) (1245)
Depreciation/Amortization 0 0 0 0 0 (8) 8)
Translation differences (1285) 0 (1285) () 0 (26) (26)
At 31.12. 29405 0 29405 244 18499 51566 70065
Cost/Fair value 29405 0 29405 244 18499 80418 98917
Accumulated depreciation/

amortization and impairment 0 0 0 0 0 (28852) (28852)
Net book value 29405 0 29405 244 18499 51566 70065

The other non-current financial assets mainly contain fixed deposits of KCHF 50000 (2005: KCHF 0) and loans to third parties.
The cost of fully amortized goodwill was offset with the accumulated amortization and impairment at 1.1.2005.
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2006 2005

Notes (CHF "000) (CHF "000)
10 Inventories

Raw materials and supplies 72422 61856

Semi-finished goods, work in progress 7396 7761

Finished products 173553 154 648

Value adjustments (27 316) (27 555]

Advance payments on goods 76 29

Total inventories 226131 196739
11 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable from associated companies 87 46

Trade accounts receivable from third parties 241052 221021

Provision for bad debts (7433) (7121]

Total trade accounts receivable 233706 213946
12 Other receivables

Receivables from associated companies 8 67

Other receivables 53582 40448

Prepayments and accrued income 14111 17883

Total other receivables 67701 58398
13 Current financial assets

Securities 197 482 200244

Financial investments 235366 748151

Total current financial assets 432848 948 395

Financial investments consist exclusively of the shareholding

in Lonza Group AG.
14 Cash and cash equivalents

Deposits 771795 387507

Cash and cash equivalents 719 11684

Total cash and cash equivalents 772514 399191
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2006 2005
Notes (CHF *000) (CHF "000)
15 Share capital
Number of Number of
issued Number of shares entitled to Share capital
Par value registered shares treasury shares dividend (CHF "000)
At 31.12.2004 CHF 0.01 25052870 797270 24255600 251
Purchase of treasury shares - 599757 (599757) -
Sale of treasury shares - (154 728) 154728 -
At 31.12.2005 CHF 0.01 25052870 1242299 23810571 251
Purchase of treasury shares - 1096657 (1096 657) -
Sale of treasury shares - (4450) 4450 -
At 31.12.2006 CHF 0.01 25052870 2334506 22718364 251
16 Changes in fair value of financial instruments:
Changes in fair value of securities and financial investments
At 1.1, 121503 (58 179)
Transfer into consolidated income statement (87 154) (40
Fair value changes according to 1AS 39 105539 193317
Income taxes recognized directly in equity due to fair value adjustments (7 165] (13595)
Total changes in fair value of financial instruments 11220 179682
At 31.12. 132723 121503
17 Minority interests
This item reflects the minority interests in capital and profit/loss for the year.
Minorities own significant shares in EMS-UBE Ltd., EFTEC Asia Pte. Ltd.,
Shanghai EFTEC Chemical Products Ltd., Changchun EFTEC Chemical
Products Ltd. and EFTEC Europe Holding AG.
The change in minority inferests is as follows:
At 1.1, 41572 37300
Purchase minority interests 0 (1044)
Dividends paid (3111 (2485)
Net income 10226 5585
Currency translation differences (859) 2216
At 31.12. 47828 41572
18 Bonds
EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG: 2% convertible bond 2002 - 25.7.2008 289902 285357
EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG: 4% debenture bond 2002 - 29.7.2008 201582 209136
EMS-INTERNATIONAL FINANCE (Guernsey! Ltd.:
2.5% convertible bond 2002 -23.4.2010 160598 240237
Total bonds 652082 734730

The option component of the convertible bonds is separately stated in the
balance sheet. The bonds are stated less repurchases via stock exchange.
The bonds contain standard covenants [pari passu, cross-default, negative
pledge clause with exceptions). The convertible bonds offer standard anti-
dilution protection lanti-dilution protection by reduction of conversion pricel.




Notes

2006 2005
(CHF "000) (CHF "000)

Details to the bonds issued:

2% convertible bond 2002 - 25.7 2008 (nominal CHF 300 million)

Each bond of CHF 5000 can be converted at any time during the conversion
period (25.7.2002 - 15.7.2008) either into 3952569 registered shares

of Llonza Group AG or into 39.00156 registered shares of EMS-CHEMIE
HOLDING AG (choice lies with bond holder) [conversion price per Lonza
share: CHF 126.50; conversion price per EMS share: CHF 128.20; in the case
of a delisting of EMS registered shares the conversion right is lost for those
shares, and the conversion price for Llonza is reduced from CHF 126.50

to CHF 1211.

The issuer has the right fo settle the obligation in cash instead of delivering
registered shares of Lonza Group AG or registered shares of EMS-CHEMIE
HOLDING AG. In spite of the possibility of conversion into EMS shares

the total option component is regarded as a liability.

The net present value is as follows:

Present value issued bond 291134 285706
Present value repurchased bond (1232 (349
At 31.12. 289902 285357
Fair value at 31.12. 347124 313134

4% debenture bond 2002 - 29.7.2008
(nominal since 28.7.2005: CHF 255 million, original: CHF 300 million)

Due to the repurchase of bonds of nominal CHF 45 million, the nominal
value was reduced from CHF 300 million to CHF 255 million per 28.7. 2005.
All other terms of the bond stay unchanged.

The net present value is as follows:

Present value issued bond 254422 254071
Present value repurchased bond (52 840) (44 935)
At 31.12. 201582 209136
Fair value at 31.12. 205980 220710

2.5% convertible bond 2002 - 23.4.2010 (nominal CHF 350 million)

Each bond of CHF 5000 can be converted at any time during the
conversion period (23.4.2002 - 13.4.2010) into 40 registered shares

of lonza Group AG (conversion price per Lonza share: CHF 125).

The net present value is as follows:

Present value issued bond 334022 329589
Present value repurchased bond (173 424) (89352
At 31.12. 160598 240237
Fair value at 31.12. 178713 264299
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2006 2005
Notes (CHF *000) (CHF "000)
19 Bank loans
The current bank loans are composed as follows:
JPY: Average interest rate 0.80% (2005: 0.61%] 9243 11729
USD: Average interest rate 5.66% (2005: 3.78 %) 5184 3085
CNY: Average interest rate 6.12% (2005: 5.58 % 1248 810
CHF: Average interest rate 9.68% (2005: ) 14 0
Total current bank loans 15689 15624
The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate to their fair value.
20  Other non-current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities 631 689
Liabilities from employee benefits IAS 19 (rev.) 9006 8094
Total other non-current liabilities 9637 8783
Liabilities from employee benefits IAS 19 (rev.) include KCHF 5269
(2005: KCHF 5519 liabilities from Swiss pensions plans (see note 3).
21 Provisions
Pension Provisions for Provisions for Other Total
liabilities restructuring litigation provisions
(CHF "000) costs risks
At 1.1.2005 1273 5000 73245 14384 93902
Increase via income statement 67 121 5828 1635 8741
Decrease via income stafement (53) 0 (10062) (359) (10474)
Amounts used 4 0 (63) (1657) (1724)
Translation differences 12 (10) 3 79 84
At 31.12. 2005 1295 6201 68951 14082 90529
Of which: Currrent portion of provisions 0 0 16877 0 16877
Non-current portion of provisions 1295 6201 52074 14082 73652
At 1.1.2006 1295 6201 68951 14082 90529
Increase via income statement 130 0 53 136 319
Decrease via income statement 0 (84) (384) (18) (486)
Amounts used (96) (1102) (8000) (4n (9239)
Redlassffications 0 0 0 (2136) (2136)
Translation differences 29 34 10 32 105
Ar 31.12. 2006 1358 5049 60630 12055 79092
Of which: Currrent portion of provisions 0 0 17315 0 17315
Non-current porfion of provisions 1358 5049 43315 12055 617177

Pension liabilities mainly contain provisions for payments to governmental institutions or independent defined contribution pension plans

of subsidiaries abroad.

Within the provisions for litigation risks, the risk arising from litigation processes is adequately covered as at the time of preparation

of the finanial statements (see note 30).
Warranty provisions are mainly included within other provisions.
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2006 2005
Notes (CHF *000) (CHF *000)
22 Other current liabilities
Advances from customers 1549 2302
Prepaid expenses and deferred income 82259 89214
Other current liabilities to associated companies 1856 484
Liabilities to social security institutions 11212 7807
Other current liabilities 35583 21884
Total other current liabilities 132459 121691
23 Lliabilities, net/ (net cash position)
Bonds (see note 18) 652082 734730
Option component of convertible bonds 34820 18128
Pension liabilities (see note 21) 1358 1295
Current bank loans (see note 19) 15689 15624
Interest-bearing liabilities 703949 769777
less
Other non-current financial assets (see note 9) 50000 0
Receivables from associated companies (see note 12) 8 67
Securities (see note 13) 197482 200244
Financial investments in current assets [see note 13) 235366 748151
Deposits [see note 14) 771795 387507
Interest-bearing liabilities, net/ (cash, net) (550702) (566 192)
less
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 14) 719 11684
Liabilities, net/Inet cash position) (551 421) (577 876)
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
24 Depreciation, amortization and impairment of intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment and financial assets
Amortization intangible assets 3183 3382
Depreciation property, plant and equipment 46362 46923
Impairment property, plant and equipment 1600 6535
Subtotal depreciation, amortization and impairment of intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment 51145 56840
Impairment financial investments in current assets 0 1254
Value adjustment to financial assets 8 (8
Total depreciation, amortization and impairment of intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment and financial assets 51153 58086

For the breakdown of the depreciation, amortization and impairment
of infangible assets and property, plant and equipment please refer
to note 9 and to the segment reporting.
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2006 2005
Notes (CHF *000) (CHF "000)
25 Purchase /disposal of fully consolidated companies and of
discontinued activities
Additions Disposals
Non-current assets 0 0 0 (238371]
Non-current liabilities 0 0 0 46175
Working capital 0 0 0 (66 036)
Net assets acquired/divested 0 0 0 (258 232)
Cash and cash equivalents - 0 0 (12090
Investment book value - 0 0 6000
Effect of spin-off EMS-DOTTIKON on retained earnings - 0 0 (264 322)
Purchase price (paidl/received 0 0 0 0
Cash and cash equivalents 0 0 0 (12090)
Cash flow from (purchasel/disposal of fully conso-
lidated companies and of discontinued activities 0 0 0 (12090
Within the process of concentration on Performance Polymers,
the exclusive synthesis specialist EMS-DOTTIKON was spun off and listed
on the stock exchange on March 31, 2005.
As a consequence, EMS-DOTTIKON is shown as “discontinued activities”.
The details are as follows:
Income statement - 1.1.-31.3.
Net sales revenue from goods and services - 34962
EBITDA - 4566
Depreciation and amortization - (2947)
EBIT - 1619
Net financial income - (557
Net income before taxes - 1062
Income taxes - 219
Net income - 843
Balance sheet - 3112
Non-current assets - -
Current assets - -
Total assets - -
Equity - -
Liabilities - -
Total equity and liabilities - -
Cash flow statement - 1.1.-31.3.
Cash flow from operating activities - 15522
Cash flow from investing activities - (8578)
Cash flow from financing activities - 3691
Investments - 1.1.-31.3.
Investments in intangible assets and property, plant and equipment - 674
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2006 2005
Notes (CHF *000) (CHF *000)
26 Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities at the end of the year amount to 17156 16540
This mainly relates to issued guarantees. No legal proceedings are known
to be in progress within the EMS Group which could have a significant impact
on the Group's financial position in excess of the provisions booked in the
balance sheet (see note 21).
27 Open derivative financial transactions
The following summary shows the most important open derivative
financial transactions:
SWAPS and EUR/CHF  Notional amount CHF 134916 274570
forward rate Positive replacement value CHF 206 533
agreements Negative replacement value CHF 1581 1314
JPY/CHF  Notional amount CHF 100394 114140
Positive replacement value CHF 162 294
Negative replacement value CHF 5186 936
USD/CHF  Notional amount CHF 59008 92551
Positive replacement value CHF 1187 846
Negative replacement value CHF 13 2077
EUR/USD  Notional amount CHF 0 3144
Positive replacement value CHF 0 5
Negative replacement value CHF 0 0
Currency EUR/CHF  Notional amount CHF 39124 18 684
options Positive replacement value CHF ] 0
Negative replacement value CHF 809 65
JPY/CHF  Nofional amount CHF 0 1665
Positive replacement value CHF 0 8
Negative replacement value CHF 0 0
Interest CHF Notional amount CHF 0 325000
swaption Positive replacement value CHF 0 762
Negative replacement value CHF 0 4334
Equity options  CHF Notional amount CHF 358680 351000
Positive replacement value CHF 11239 6935
Negative replacement value CHF 10190 200
Total Notional amount CHF 692122 1180754
Positive replacement value CHF 12795 9383
Negative replacement value CHF 17779 8926

Derivative financial transactions were mostly effected for hedging purposes.
SWAPS, forward rate agreements and currency option contracts are used for
the hedging of foreign currencies. Interest rate SWAPS serve to hedge the
risks of interest rate changes. Equity options serve to hedge the market risks
inherent in current financial assets and of bonds. The replacement value is
understood as beeing the fair value of open derivative financial transaction:s.
Positive replacement values are the values that are lost if the counterparty
cannot deliver (default risk). This risk is considered to be minimal, as the
counterparties are first-rate financial institutions. Any derivatives are reported
at fair value within accrued income and deferred income respectively, with
changes in fair value included in financial income /expenses.
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2006 2005

Notes (CHF *000) (CHF "000)
28  Earnings per share — EPS

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net income attributable

to the shareholders of EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG by the weighted

average number of shares outstanding lexcluding treasury shares). Diluted

earnings per share factor in any potential dilution which may be caused

by the exercising of warrant and conversion rights on outstanding bond

issues.

Details of earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share

Weighted average of registered shares outstanding 22903583 24258804

Continued activities:

Net income attributable to the shareholders of EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG 297 441 176291

Basic earnings per share (CHF) 12.99 7.27

Discontinued activities:

Net income attributable to the shareholders of EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG 0 843

Basic earnings per share (CHF) 0.00 0.03

Diluted earnings per share

Weighted average of registered shares outstanding (basic) 22903583 24258804

Adjustment for assumed conversion of 2% convertible bond,

2002 -25.7.2008 2330187 2337371
Weighted average of registered shares outstanding at assumed conversion

of 2% convertible bond (diluted] 25233770 26596175
Maximum 25052870 25052870
As the EMS Group has neither authorized nor conditional capital, the basis
for calculation of diluted earnings per share is limited by the total number
of shares issued.

Continued activities:
Net income attributable to the shareholders of EMS-CHEMIE

HOLDING AG (basicl 297 441 176291
Elimination of interest expenses relating to 2% convertible bond,

2002 -25.7.2008 5983 5993
Elimination other expenses relating to 2% convertible bond, 2002 -25.7.2008 15218 8236
Minus tax effect (1660 (1114)
Net income attributable to the shareholders of EMS-CHEMIE

HOLDING AG (diluted) 316982 189406
Diluted earnings per share (CHF) 12.65 7.27
A dilution is a reduction in earnings per share resulting from the assumption
that convertible instruments are converted. As in 2005 the calculated diluted
earnings per share was higher than the basic earnings per share, there
was no dilutive effect in 2005.

Discontinued activities:
Net income attributable to the shareholders of EMS-CHEMIE

HOLDING AG (basic = diluted) 0 843
Basic/diluted earnings per share (CHF) 0.00 0.03




Notes

2006 2005
(CHF *000) (CHF *000)

29

30

31

Significant shareholders

Emesta Holding AG, Zug, 13 395356 registered shares
[2005: 13 395356 registered shares)
Amount of holding 53.47 % 53.47 %

No other representation of significant shareholders is known to
the Board of Directors.

Transactions with related parties

Emesta Holding AG, Zug (maijority shareholder), members of the Board of Directors and members of
Senior Management as well as the close members of their families and associated companies are
regarded as related parties. For financial key figures of the significant associated companies, see
note 34.

The members of the Board of Directors or Senior Management as well as the close members of their
families did not receive any credits, advances or other types of loans. No related party fransactions
took place with them.

The compensation to the non-executive members of the Board of Directors was KCHF 1418
{2005: KCHF 1418). The compensation to the executive members of the Board of Directors and the
members of Senior Management amounted to KCHF 2 807 (2005: KCHF 2 818).

The bonuses included in the reporting year consist of the bonuses estimated in the reporting year.
The definitive bonuses for the reporting year are announced after the publication of this financial
report and are presented in the annual report 2006/2007 in the Corporate Governance section,
chapter 5.2 “Compensation for serving members of executive bodies”.

Breakdown of the total compensation

Short-term employee benefits to the members of the Board of Directors and

Senior Management 4213 4236
Share-based payment 0 0
Termination benefits 0 0
Post-employment benefits 0 0
Other long-term employee benefits 12 0

Total compensation 4225 4236

In connection with the sale of Atisholz to Emesta Holding AG in 2001, EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG
issued a guarantee for warranties. This guarantee was CHF 22 million at 31.12.2006 (2005: CHF 30
million). CHF 8 million was used in 2006 (see note 21).

Subsequent events

On February 19, 2007, it was announced that Emesta Holding AG, Zug, previously majority
shareholder of EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG (53.479%), now holds 11 895356 registered shares of
EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG, corresponding to an amount of holding of 47.48%.

Miriam Blocher now directly or indirectly holds 1969000 registered shares of EMS-CHEMIE
HOLDING AG, corresponding to an amount of holding of 7.86%.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on March 23, 2007
and need to be approved by the General Meeting on August 11, 2007.

Between December 31, 2006 and March 23, 2007 there were no subsequent events requiring an
adjustment of the book values of Group assets and liabilities or needing to be published here.
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Notes

32  List of subsidiaries and minority holdings [at 31.12.2006)

Name Domicile Country
EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG Domat/Ems Switzerland
EMS-INTERNATIONAL FINANCE (Guernseyl Ltd.  Guernsey Guernsey
EMS-FINANCE (Guernsey! Ltd. Guernsey Guernsey
EMS-MANAGEMENT SERVICES (Guernsey! Ltd. Guernsey Guernsey
EMS-PATENT AG Domat/Ems Switzerland
BUSINESS AREA PERFORMANCE POLYMERS
EMS-CHEMIE AG Domat/Ems Switzerland
EMS-CHEMIE (Francel S.A. Boulogne France
EMS-CHEMIE (UK) Ltd. Stafford UK
EMS-CHEMIE (Japan) Ltd. Tokyo Japan
EMS-UBE Ltd. Ube Japan
EMS-CHEMIE (Deutschland) GmbH Gross-Umstadt Germany
EMS-CHEMIE (Asia) Ltd. Hsin Chu Hsien Taiwan (R.O.Cl
EMS-GRILON HOLDING Inc. Wilmington, DE USA
EMS-CHEMIE (North Americal Inc. Sumter, SC USA
EFTEC Europe Holding AG Zug Switzerland
EFTEC AG Romanshorn Switzerland
EFTEC Sarl Montataire Cedex France
EFTEC Engineering AB Hassleholm Sweden
EFTEC Engineering GmbH Markdorf Germany
EFTEC Ltd. Rhigos UK
EFTEC NV Genk Belgium
EFTEC SA. Zaragoza Spain
EFTEC Asia Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore
EFTEC (Thailand) Co. Ltd. Rayong Thailand
Shanghai EFTEC Chemical Products Ltd. Shanghai China (People’s Rep.)
Changchun EFTEC Chemical Products Ltd. Changchun China (People’s Rep.!
EFTEC Shroff (Indial Ltd. Mumbai India
D PLAST-EFTEC a.s. Zlin Czech Republic
EMS-TOGO Corp. Taylor, Ml USA
EFTEC North America, L.L.C. Madison Heights, Ml USA
DINOL Holding AB Hassleholm Sweden
DINOL AB Hassleholm Sweden
EFTEC Aftermarket GmbH Logde Germany
BUSINESS AREA FINE CHEMICALS/ENGINEERING
EMS-PRIMID *
EMS-PATVAG AG Domat/Ems Switzerland
EMS-PATVAG s.r.o. Prague Czech Republic
EMS-METERING AG Ménnedorf Switzerland

(ategory:

P = Production

V = Trade, sale

D = Financing, various

Consolidation:
K = Fully consolidated
£ = Equity valuation

“EMS-PRIMID is o

reporting unit within
EMS-CHEMIE AG



Currency

Share capital
(in "000)

Group

Holding

direct

(ategory

Consolidation

CHF
CHF
CHF
CHF
CHF

CHF
EUR
GBP
JPY
JPY
EUR
TWD
ush
usb

CHF
CHF
EUR
SEK
EUR
GBP
EUR
EUR
ush
THB
CNY
CNY
INR
CZK
usb
usb
SEK
SEK
EUR

CHF
CzK
CHF

251
50

|

|
100

100

1951
1530
300000
1500000
2556
281000
2420
11285

8000
2500
8
5000
25
352
1240
944
3518
30000
20750
27500
15000
47 569
750
44139
100
1000
1023

100
200
100

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

00.00%
00.00%
00.00%
00.00%
66.67 %
00.00%
00.00%
00.00%
00.00%

|
1
|
|

|
|
|
|

70.00%
70.00%
70.00%
70.00%
70.00%
70.00%
70.00%
70.00%
42.00%
42.00%
25.20%
25.20%
20.58%
35.00%
100.00 %
30.00%
100.00 %
100.00 %
100.00 %

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

66.67 %
100.00%
100.00%

95.87%
100.00%

70.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

60.00%
100.00%

60.00%

60.00%

49.00%

50.00%
100.00%

30.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
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33 Change in scope of consolidation

Fully-consolidated:
Addition:
EMS-PATVAG s.r.o.
This company was founded on April 28, 2006.
Disposal:
SEGURO Corp.
This company was merged with EMS-TOGO Corp. on January 1, 2006.
Miscellaneous:
GRIVELA AG
This company changed its name to EMS-METERING AG on June 6, 2006.

34 Significant associated companies

EFTEC North America, L.L.C.

Domicile Madison Heights, MI, USA
Percentage held 30.00%
Financial year December 1,2005 — November 30, 2006
Category Production, Sale
Currency UN)D)
Net sales revenue KCHF 109022
Non-current assets KCHF 46 655
Current assets KCHF 26556
Equity KCHF 58007
Liabilities KCHF 15204
Net income KCHF 4642

Between December 1, 2006 and December 31, 2006 no events occurred that materially influenced
shareholders’ equity.

D PLAST-EFTEC a.s.

Domicile Zlin, Czech Republic
Percentage held 35.00%
Financial year January 1,2006 - December 31, 2006
Category Production, Sale
Currency CZK
Net sales revenue KCHF 32691
Non-current assets KCHF 8030
Current assets KCHF 21124
Equity KCHF 20402
Liabilities KCHF 8752
Net income KCHF 5489

54



Report of the Group Auditors

Report of the Group Auditors to the
General Meeting of
EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG, Domat/Ems

As Group Auditors, we have audited the consoli-
dated financial statements lincome statement,
balance sheet, changes in equity, cash flow state-
ment and notes) of EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG,
Domat/Ems, for the year ended December 31, 2006
as presented on pages 22 to 54. Certain financial
statements of subsidiaries which form a material
part of the consolidated financial statements have
been audited by other auditors.

These consolidated financial statements are the re-
sponsibility of the Board of Directors. Our responsi-
bility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We confirm
that we meet the legal requirements concerning
professional qualification and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with Swiss
Auditing Standards and with the International Stan-
dards on Auditing [ISA), which require that an audit
be planned and performed to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement. We

have examined on a test basis evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. We have also assessed the
accounting principles used, significant estimates
made and the overall consolidated financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position,
the results of operations and the cash flows in ac-
cordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law.

We recommend that the consolidated financial
statements submitted to you be approved.

Zurich, March 23, 2007

KPMG AG

Hanspeter Stocker Francois Rouiller
Swiss Certified Swiss Certified
Accountant Accountant

Auditor in charge

EMS Group
Consolidated Financial Statements
Annual Report 200672007

55






Annual Accounts
EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG

(for the Financial Year May 1, 2006 — April 30, 2007)

+MS
EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG

Domat/Ems Switzerland



EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG
Financial Statements
Annual Report 200672007

58

Income Statement May 1, 2006 to April 30, 2007

200672007 200572006
Notes (CHF "000) (CHF *000)
INCOME
Financial income
Interest income from third parties 5152 9681
Interest income from group companies 2323 3827
Foreign exchange differences, net ] 0 9698
Income from sale of investments in group companies 238 817
Dividends on group companies 140939 118600
Income from financial assets, realized 49986 20359
Income from financial assets, unrealized 16192 111307
Total income 214830 274289
EXPENSES
Financial expenses
Expenses from financial assets, realized 1033 9817
Expenses from financial assets, unrealized 46319 0
Interest expenses to third parties 17332 24390
Interest expenses to group companies 1367 6920
Foreign exchange differences, net 1 521 0
Bank charges, duties, fees 951 843
Administration expenses 1534 302
Expenses arising from guarantees 2 8000 0
Total expenses 77057 42272
Net income before taxes 137773 232017
Taxes 1266 10308
Net income 136507 221709




Balance Sheet as at April 30, 2007

EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG
Financial Statements
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30.4.2007 30.4.2006

Notes (CHF ’000) (CHF "000)

Non-current assets 377781 233243
Investments in group companies 3 274913 175753
Loans to group companies 52868 57490
Other non-current financial assets 50000 0
Current assets 780668 992728
Prepayments and accrued income 3430 5618
Accounts receivable from third parties and group companies 4 9033 3998
Current financial assets 5 470396 938927
Cash and cash equivalents 297809 44185
TOTAL ASSETS 1158449 122597
Shareholders’ equity 6 576640 587807
Share capital 7/8 251 251
Legal reserves 50 50
Reserves for treasury shares 5 268161 265180
Other reserves 10000 10000
Retained earnings 9 298178 312326
Balance brought forward 161671 90617

Net income 136507 221709
Liabilities 581809 638164
Non-current liabilities 516149 599169
Loans from group companies 0 30000

Bonds 10 501980 555000
Provisions 14169 14169
Current liabilities 65660 38995
Accruals and deferred income 12094 17032
Accounts payable to third parties and group companies 1 53566 21963

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1158449 1225971
Balance sheet equity ratio 49.8% 47.9%
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Notes to the Financial Statements 2006/ 2007

Accounting principles

1. General

The financial statements of EMS-CHEMIE
HOLDING AG have been prepared in accordance
with the historical cost convention and with the
provisions of Swiss law. Assets, liabilities and share-
holders’ equity are valued at the lower of cost or
market and the principle of prudence is applied.
The financial year differs from the calendar year
(closing date: April 30, 2007).

Companies in which EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG's
shareholding is in excess of 50% (voting rights] are
designated as group companies.

2. Foreign currency translation

Revenue and expenditure in foreign currencies are
translated into Swiss francs for the profit and loss
account at the average rates for the month in which
they arose.

Financial assets and current assets are translated at
the year-end rate, as are current liabilities.

3. Current assets

Appropriate value adjustments have been effected
for balances subject to risk.

Current financial assets are shown at the lower of
cost or market value, derivative financial instruments
at market value.

4. Non-current assets

Non-current assets are shown at purchase value
or at face value less any value adjustments required,
as the case may be.

5. Liabilities

Non-current liabilities are shown at their redemption
value.



Income Statement 2006 /2007

20062007 200572006
Notes (CHF *000) (CHF *000)
1 Foreign exchange differences, net
Foreign exchange gains 4097 13453
Foreign exchange losses 4618 3755
Foreign exchange differences, net (521) 9698
2 Expenses arising from guarantees
In connection with the sale of Atisholz to Emesta Holding AG in 2001,
EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG issued a guarantee for warranties (see note 12).
This guarantee stood at CHF 22 million as of April 30, 2007
(April 30, 2006: CHF 30 million).
CHEF 8 million was utilized in the reporting year.
Balance Sheet as at April 30, 2007
3 Investments in group companies
Investments as at December 31, 2006 are shown on pages 52 to 53.
In the period to April 30, 2007, investments changed as follows:
Miscellaneous:
EMS-CHEMIE (Asial Ltd.
This company changed its name to EMS-CHEMIE (Taiwan) Ltd.
as of January 1, 2007.
EMS-INTERNATIONAL FINANCE (Guernsey) Ltd.
This company implemented a capital increase amounting to
CHF 100 million as of April 30, 2007.
4 Accounts receivable from third parties and group companies
Accounts receivable from third parties 2826 3943
Accounts receivable from group companies 6207 55
Accounts receivable from third parties and group companies 9033 3998

EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG
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200672007 200572006
Notes (CHF *000) (CHF "000)
5 Current financial assets
Securities 54640 38516
Repurchased bonds 1339 56962
Treasury shares 268 161 265180
Financial investments 146256 578269
Current financial assets 470396 938927
Financial investments consist exclusively of the shareholding
in Lonza Group AG.
Details to treasury shares: Number of registered shares
200672007 200572006
Balance at May 1 2314897 662519
Purchases 26245 1654707
Disposals (4 450) (2329
Conversion (468) 0
Balance at April 30 2336224 2314897
During the year under review, 26 245 (2005/2006: 1654 707) treasury shares
were purchased at an average market price of CHF 135.09 (2005/2006:
CHF 124.47) and 4 450 (2005/2006: 2 329) treasury shares were sold at
an average market price of CHF 135.02 (2005/2006: CHF 109.83). Shares
were fraded on the stock exchange.
Convertible bonds with a nominal value of KCHF 60 (2005/2006: KCHF 0)
were converted into 468 (2005 /2006: 0) treasury shares at the conversion
price of CHF 128.20 (see note 10).
6 Shareholders’ equity
Balance at May 1 587807 463585
Dividends paid (147 674) (97 487)
Net income (see note 9) 136 507 221709
Balance at April 30 576640 587807
7 Share capital
Number of Number of
issued registered Number of shares Share capital
Par value shares freasury shares entitled fo dividend (CHF "000)
Balance at May 1, 2006 CHF0.01 25052870 2314897 22737973 251
Change in treasury shares - 21327 (21327 -
Balance at April 30, 2007 CHF0.01 25052870 2336224 22716646 251
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2006/2007 200572006
Notes (CHF "000) (CHF "000)
8  Significant shareholders
Emesta Holding AG, Zug, 11895356 registered shares
[2005/2006: 13 395 356 registered shares)
Amount of holding 47.48% 53.47%
Miriam Blocher, 1969000 registered shares (2005 /2006: -
Amount of holding 7.86% -
No other representation of significant shareholders is known to
the Board of Directors.
9 Retained earnings
Balance brought forward 312326 393855
Dividends paid (147 674) (97 487)
Reclassification reserves for treasury share (2981) (205751)
Net income 136 507 221709
Retained earnings 298178 312326
10 Bonds
2 % convertible bond 2002 - 25. 7. 2008 299940 300000
49% debenture bond 2002 - 29. 7.2008 202 040 255000
Bonds 501980 555000
Details of the bonds can be seen in note 18, “Bonds”, in the consolidated
financial statements of the EMS Group.
Convertible bonds with a nominal value of KCHF 60 (2005/2006: KCHF 0)
were converted info freasury shares (see note 5).
Due to the repurchase of bonds with a nominal value of KCHF 52 960,
the nominal value was reduced from KCHF 255000 to KCHF 202 040 as
of March 30, 2007. All other terms of the bond remain unchanged.
11 Accounts payable to third parties and group companies
Accounts payable to third parties 3051 9324
Accounts payable to group companies 50515 12639
Accounts payable to third parties and group companies 53566 21963
Further Details
12 Contingent liabilities
Guarantees [maximum liability) 594 861 539093

To secure the convertible bond in the amount of CHF 350 million issued
by EMS-INTERNATIONAL FINANCE (Guernsey) Ltd. in April 2002,
EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG granted a guarantee in the amount of

CHF 367.5 million.
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Proposals of the Board of Directors

At the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on August 11, 2007, the Board of Directors

will present the following proposals regarding the 2006/2007 financial year:

1. Approval of the Annual Report and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2006 and the financial statements for the year ended April 30, 2007;

2. Discharge of the Board of Directors from its responsibilities for the conduct of the business;

3. Retained earnings consisting of:

200672007 200572006
Net income 136 507 357.46 221709420.33
Reclassification reserves for treasury shares (2981 109.65) (205751 075.29)
Balance brought forward 164 652 299.48 296367 701.44
Retained earnings 298178547.29 312326046.48

to be appropriated as follows:

Payment of an ordinary dividend of CHF 5.50

(previous year CHF 5.00] gross and (124941 553.00) (113595 190.00)
a special dividend of CHF 2.15

(previous year CHF 1.50) gross (48 840 788.90) (34078 557.00)
per registered share entitled to dividend

Balance to be carried forward 124 396 205.39 164 652299.48

4. Schedule
The dividend is payable as of August 15, 2007.

Domat/Ems, May 25, 2007

EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG
The Chairman of the Board of Directors
Dieter Klug



Report of the Statutory Auditors

Report of the Statutory Auditors
to the General Meeting of
EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG, Domat/Ems

As statutory auditors, we have audited the account-
ing records and the financial statements presented
on pages 58 to 63 consisting of income statement,
balance sheet and notes of EMS-CHEMIE
HOLDING AG for the year ended April 30, 2007.

These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Board of Directors. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We confirm that we meet
the legal requirements concerning professional
qualification and independence.

QOur audit was conducted in accordance with Swiss
Auditing Standards, which require that an audit be
planned and performed to obtain reasonable as-
surance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. We have examined
on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts

EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG
Financial Statements
Annual Report 200672007

and disclosures in the financial statements. We have
also assessed the accounting principles used,
significant estimates made and the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the accounting records and financial
statements and the proposed appropriation of
available earnings comply with Swiss law and the
company's articles of incorporation.

We recommend that the financial statements
submitted to you be approved.

Zurich, May 25, 2007
KPMG AG
Francois Rouiller

Swiss Certified
Accountant

Hanspeter Stocker
Swiss Certified
Accountant
Auditor in charge
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Addresses of EMS Companies, Switzerland

EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG

Reichenauverstrasse
CH-7013 Domat/Ems

Phone +41 81 6326111
Fax 441 81 6327401
http://www.ems-group.com
E-mail: inffo@ems-group.com

EMS-CHEMIE HOLDING AG

Fuederholzstrasse 34
CH-8704 Herrliberg

Phone +4144 9157000
Fax  +4144 9157002
http://www.ems-group.com
E-mail: inffo@ems-group.com

EMS-CHEMIE AG
Reichenauerstrasse

CH-7013 Domat/Ems

Phone +41 81 63261 11

Fax  +41 816327401
http://www.ems-group.com
E-mail: welcome@emschem.com

EMS-CHEMIE AG
Fuederholzstrasse 34
CH-8704 Herrliberg

Phone +4144 92157000
Fax  +4144 9157002
http://www.ems-group.com
E-mail: inffo@ems-group.com

EMS-CHEMIE AG
Kugelgasse 22

CH-8708 Mé&nnedorf

Phone +41 44 9210000
Fax  +4144 9210001
http://www.ems-group.com
E-mail: inffo@ems-group.com

EMS-CHEMIE AG EMS-CHEMIE AG

Business Unit EMS-GRIVORY Business Unit EMS-PRIMID
Extrusion Polymers Reichenauerstrasse
Reichenauerstrasse CH-7013 Domat/Ems

CH-7013 Domat/Ems Phone +41 816327011

Phone +41 81 6327980 Fox  +41816327464

Fax  +41 81 6327408 http://www.ems-primid.com
http://www.emsgrivory.com E-mail: infoline@ems-primid.com

E-mail: welcome@emsgrivory.com

EMS-PATVAG AG

EMS-CHEMIE AG Reichenauerstrasse

Business Unit EMS-GRIVORY CH-7013 Domat/Ems
Performance Polymers Phone +41 81 6327545
Reichenauerstrasse Fax 441816327436
CH-7013 Domat/Ems http://www.emspatvag.com
Phone +41 81 6327888 E-mail: welcome@emspatvag.com

Fax  +41 816327665

http://www.emsgrivory.com

E-mail: welcome@emsgrivory.com EFTEC AG
Hofstrasse 31
CH-8590 Romanshorn

EMS-CHEMIE AG Phone +41 71 4664300
Business Unit EMS-GRILTECH Fax  +41714664301
Reichenauerstrasse http://www.eftec.ch
CH-7013 Domat/Ems E-mail: info@eftec.ch

Phone +41 81 6327202

Fax  +41 816327402
http://www.emsgriltech.com
E-mail: inffo@emsgriltech.com

EMS-CHEMIE AG

Business Unit EMS-SERVICES
Reichenauerstrasse

CH-7013 Domat/Ems

Phone +41 816327766

Fax  +41816327676
http://www.emsservices.ch
E-mail: welcome@emsservices.ch



Addresses of EMS Companies, Worldwide

Belgium

EFTEC NV

Henry Fordlaan 1
B-3600 Genk

Phone +32 89 651400
Fox 43289651480

China

EMS-CHEMIE (China) Ltd.
Business Unit of EMS-GRIVORY
Room 1908

Far East International Plaza
319 Xian Xia Road

Shanghai 200051

P. R. China

Phone +86 2162957186

Fax  +86 2162957870

Shanghai EFTEC
Chemical Products Ltd.
521 Guang Hua Road

Hu Mui Road

Shanghai 201108

P.R. China

Phone +86 21 64891122
Fox  +86 2164891199

EFTEC Asia

Shanghai Representative Office
Room 1008

Super Ocean Finance Center
2067 Yan An Road West
Shanghai 200336

P. R. China

Phone +86 21 62957716

Fax  +86 2162957816

Changchun EFTEC
Chemical Products Ltd.
No. 808 Chuangxin Road
New & High Tech. Ind.
Development Zone
Changchun 130012

P. R. China

Phone + 86 431 508 0800
Fox  +86 4315080808

Czech Republic

D PLAST-EFTEC a.s.
LuZkovice 206

CZ-763 11 Zlin

Phone +420 577004411
Fax  +420 577004 444

France

EMS-CHEMIE (Francel S.A.
73 =77 rue de Sévres

Bofte postale 52

F-92105 Boulogne-Billancourt
Cedex

Phone +33 141100610

Fax  +33 148255607

E-mail: welcome@fr.emsgrivory.com

EFTEC Sarl

Les Marches de I'Oise
Batiment Copenhague

100, rue Louis Blanc
F-60765 Montataire Cedex
Phone +33 344241918
Fax  +33344249710

Germany

EMS-CHEMIE
(Deutschland) GmbH
Warthweg 14

D-64823 Gross-Umstadt
Phone +49 60787830
Fax  +49 6078783416

E-mail: welcome@de.emsgrivory.com

EFTEC Aftermarket GmbH
Pyrmonter Strasse 76
D-32676 Lugde

Phone +49 5281 9829 80

Fax  +49 5281 9829 8460

EFTEC Engineering GmbH
Dornierstrasse 7

D-88677 Markdorf

Phone +49 75449200

Fax  +49 7544920200

Great Britain

EMS-CHEMIE (UK) Ltd.
Darfin House, Priestly Court
Staffordshire Technology Park
GB-Stafford ST18 0AR

Phone +44 1785283739
Fax  +44 1785283722

E-mail: welcome@uk.emsgrivory.com

EFTEC Ltd.

Rhigos/Aberdare

GB-Mid Glamorgan CF44 QUE
Phone +44 1685 815400

Fox  +44 1685813997

Guernsey

EMS-INTERNATIONAL
FINANCE (Guernsey! Ltd.
East Office

Sunnycroft, The Grange

St. Peter Port

Guernsey GY1 2QG
Channel Islands

Phone +44 1481 712704

Fax  +44 1481 712705

India

EMS-CHEMIE (Taiwan) Ltd.
India Office

Plot No. 645 — 646 4t Floor
Oberoi Chambers Il

New Link Road

Andheri (West), Mumbai 400 053
India

Phone +91 22 3294 9870

Fax +912226736218

EFTEC Shroff (India) Ltd.
Plot No. 645 — 646 4t Floor
Oberoi Chambers ||

New Link Road

Andheri (West), Mumbai 400 053

India
Phone +91 22 2674 7900
Fox +91 2226736218
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Japan

EMS-CHEMIE Uapan) Lid.
EMS Bldg.

2-11-20 Higashi-koujiya

Ota-ku

Tokyo 144-0033

Japan

Phone +81 357350611

Fax  +81 357350614
http://www.emsgrivory.co.jp
E-mail: welcome@jp.emsgrivory.com

EMS-UBE Ltd.

Kogushi 1978-10

Ube 755-8633

Japan

Phone +81 836310213

Fax  +81 836310214
E-mail: vems1k3@ube-ind.co.jp

Russia

D PLAST-EFTEC NN

Pr. lliicha 39-77

603101 Nizhnij Novgorod
Russia

Phone +7 8312968 245
Fax 478312969889

D PLAST-EFTEC RT

Ulica 20.1, Korpus 1/1
Promyslennaja Ploscadka Alabuga
Elabuzhsky rayon

423 630 Elabuga

Republic Tatarstan

Russia

Phone +7 8555751940

Fax  +7 8555751941

Singapore

EFTEC Asia Pte. Ltd.
15 Beach Road
#03-07 Beach Centre
Singapore 189677
Phone + 65 65458201
Fax  +65 63372806

Spain

EFTEC S.A.

Carretera Logrofio km 29,2
E-50639 Figueruelas (Zaragozal
Phone +34 976656269

Fax  +34 976656270

Taiwan

EMS-CHEMIE (Taiwan) Ltd.
36, Kwang Fu South Road

Hsin Chu Industrial Park

Fu Kou Hsiang

Hsin Chu Hsien 30351

Taiwan, R.O.C.

Phone + 886 35985335

Fax  +886 35985345

E-mail: welcome@tw.emsgrivory.com

The original Annual Report is written in German. In case of inconsistencies between

the German and this English version, the German version shall prevail.

Thailand

EFTEC (Thailand) Co. Ltd.
Eastern Seaboard

Industrial Estate (Rayong]
109/10 Moo 4, Pluakdaeng
Rayong 21140

Thailand

Phone + 66 38954271

Fax  +66 38954270

Ukraine

ZAO Plastol

Ul. Gorkoho 27/29, #47
69063 Zaporozhye
Ukraine

Phone + 380 612 138 568
Fax  +380 612138568

E-mail: plastol@comint.net

United States

EMS-CHEMIE

(North Americal Inc.
2060 Corporate Way
P.O.Box 1717

Sumter, SC 29151

USA

Phone +1803 4819173
Fax  +18034813820

E-mail: welcome@us.emsgrivory.com
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